WESTPORT CONNECTICUT
BOARD OF FINANCE

NOTICE OF EXECUTIVE SESSION

The Board of Finance will hold a Special Meeting on Wednesday, March 4, 2020 at 7:30 p.m. in
Room 201/201A of Town Hall for the following purpose. It is anticipated that the Board of
Finance will vote to go into Executive Session for such discussions:

1. To discuss 136 Riverside Avenue property.
2. To discuss the Real Property Committee’s preliminary analysis of other potential
property sales.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING

The Board of Finance will hold its Public Meeting on Wednesday, March 4, 2020 at 8:00 p.m. in
Room 201/201A of Town Hall for the following purposes:

AGENDA
1. To approve the Board of Finance Minutes of the January 8, 2020 Regular Meeting and the January
15, 2020 Special Meeting, the February 10, 2020 Special Meeting and the February 13, 2020 Special
Meeting.

2. Financial Report from the Finance Director. (Discussion Only)

3. Board of Education 2nd quarter Financial Report from the Chief Financial Officer. (Discussion
Only)

4. Status Update from the Audit Manager. (Discussion Only)

5. Questions from the Board of Finance Members to the Administration. (Please submit any
questions in advance). (Discussion Only)

6. Coleytown Middle School Status Update from Sheri Gordon. (Discussion Only)

7. Upon the request of the Town Attorney’s office and in accordance with §C6-2 of the Town
Charter, to recommend a lease renewal between the Town of Westport and Parent Child Center,
Inc. for property located at 90 Hillspoint Road.

8. Upon the request of the Town Attorney’s office, to approve a special appropriation in the amount
of $170,000.00 to the Contract Services Account 10101170-532000 for unanticipated matters and
ongoing affordable housing matters.

Brian Stern, Chair
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10.

11.

12.

Upon the request of the Town Attorney’s office, to approve a transfer of $30,000.00 from the
Negotiation Services Account 10101170-533200 to the Contract Services Account 10101170-532000
for unanticipated matters and ongoing affordable housing matters.

Board of Education Interim Superintendent David Abbey and Board of Education Chair Candice
Savin will present the Board of Education Budget for Fiscal Year 2020-21.

First Selectman Jim Marpe will present the Town of Westport Budget for Fiscal Year 2020-2021.

Budget 2021 Workshop (Discussion Only)

Note: The practice for upcoming BOF regular meetings will be to close the meetings at 10:00 PM. Motions
to extend individual meetings can be heard.
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Item #1

WESTPORT CONNECTICUT
BOARD OF FINANCE

DRAFT MINUTES OF BOF EXECUTIVE SESSION

The Board of Finance held a Special Meeting on Wednesday, January 8, 2020 at 7:30 p.m. in Room
201/201A of Town Hall for the following purpose. It is anticipated that the Board of Finance
will vote to go into Executive Session for such discussions:
Board voted to go into Executive Session: Motion: Lee Caney, 2nd Brian Stern Vote 6-0. Andrea
Moore not in attendance for vote

1. To discuss the town-wide analysis of operational and financial risks.
Board voted to come out of Executive Session: Motion: Lee Caney, 2nd Brian Stern Vote 7-0.

DRAFT MINUTES OF BOF PUBLIC MEETING

The Board of Finance held its Public Meeting on Wednesday, January 8, 2020 at 8:00 p.m. in Room
201/201A of Town Hall for the following purposes:

In Attendance: Jay DesMarteau, Sheri Gordon, Lee Caney, Brian Stern, Andrea Moore, Nanci
Dupier,
Jim Foster

AGENDA

1. To approve the Board of Finance Minutes of the December 11, 2019 Regular Meeting.
Motion to approve: Lee Caney. Second: Nancie Dupier

2. Financial Report heard from the Finance Director. (Discussion Only)
3. Status Update from the Audit Manager. (Discussion Only)
4. Coleytown Middle School Status Update heard from Sheri Gordon. (Discussion Only)

5. Upon the request of the Director of Parks and Recreation, to approve an appropriation of
$240,000.00 along with bond and note authorization to the Municipal Improvement Fund
Account 30508810-500182 for the replacement of the boarding fingers on “F” Dock at the Ned
Dimes Marina.

Motion to approve: Andrea Moore, Second: Jay DesMarteau. Vote 5-1-1. For: Foster, Dupier, Moore,
Caney, DesMarteau. Against: Stern, Abstained: Gordon.

Brian Stern, Chair
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6. Upon the request of the Director of Parks and Recreation, to approve an appropriation of
$125,000.00 along with bond and note authorization to the Municipal Improvement Fund
Account 30508810-500183 to upgrade the control system for the Longshore Golf Course irrigation
system.

Motion to approve: Brian Stern, Second: Sheri Gordon. Vote 7-0-0.

7. Upon the request of the Director of Public Works, to approve an appropriation of $12,099.26 to
the Capital and Non-Recurring Account #31503310-500185 for the cost of additional work due to
unforeseen conditions during the elevator installation.

Motion to approve: Lee Caney, Second Jay DesMartaeu. Vote: 7-0-0.

8. Upon the request of the Director of Public Works, to approve an appropriation of $62,000.00
along with bond and note authorization to the Municipal Improvement Fund Account 30503310-
500184 for funding Westport’s share of the Design expenses for replacement of the Cavalry Road
Bridge over the West Branch of the Saugatuck River.
Motion to approve: Brian Stern. Second Andrea Moore. Vote 7-0-0

Motion to Adjourn: Nanci Dupier, Second Jim Foster. Vote 7-0-0. Meeting Adjourned 9:29pm

Notes Respectfully Submitted by Andrea Moore

Brian Stern, Chair
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WESTPORT CONNECTICUT
BOARD OF FINANCE

DRAFT MINUTES BOARD OF FINANCE SPECIAL MEETING

The Board of Finance held a Special Meeting on Wednesday, January 15, 2020 at 8:00 p.m. at The
Westport Library in the Komansky Room for the following purposes:

In attendance: Brian Stern, Andrea Moore, Lee Caney, Sheri Gordon, Nanci Dupier, Jim Foster, and
Jay DesMarteau.

AGENDA

1. Discuss the following items (no votes taken):

a. Town Risk Analysis - Presented by Sara Harris

b. Reserve Fund Review - Presented by Gary Conrad

c. Expectations for the 2020-2021 budget - Discussion lead by the BOF Members
d. Capital Plan Review- Presented by Gary Conrad

Meeting Adjourned 11:01pm
Meeting Notes respectfully submitted by Andrea Moore

Brian Stern, Chair
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WESTPORT CONNECTICUT
BOARD OF FINANCE

DRAFT MINUTES OF SPECIAL BUDGET MEETINGS

The Board of Finance held its informal Budget Workshops on Monday February 10, 2020 and
Thursday February 13, 2020 at the times and locations below to discuss the Selectman’s
preliminary requested 2020-21 budget for the Town of Westport. No action or votes taken.
Areas to be covered are as follows:

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 10, 2020 6:30PM Library Board Room 210
Attendees: Jay DesMartaeu, Jim Foster, Lee Caney, Sheri Gordon, Nancie Dupier, Andrea
Moore and Brian Stern

1. Parks and Recreation & Wakeman Town Farm 6:30PM - 8:00PM

2. Public Works/Sewer Fund 8:00PM - 9:00PM

3. General Government 9:00PM - 9:30PM

4. Pension, Insurance, Transfers 9:30PM - 10:30PM
Adjourned at 10:47PM.

DRAFT MINUTES OF BOF EXECUTIVE SESSION

The Board of Finance held a Special Meeting on Thursday, February 13, 2020 at 12:00 p.m. in
the Library Board Room 210 for the following purpose. It is anticipated that the Board of
Finance will vote to go into Executive Session for such discussions:

Attendees: Brian Stern, Andrea Moore, Jim Foster, Lee Caney. Jay DesMarteau joins at 12:30pm,
Nancie Dupier joins at 12:50pm. Sheri Gordon joins after executive session.

1. To discuss potential litigation.

2. To discuss pending litigation involving Cross Street LLC v. Westport Planning &
Zoning Commission, Garden Homes v. Westport Planning & Zoning Commission
and Summit Saugatuck v. Westport Planning & Zoning Commission.

Vote to adjourn executive session (1st Lee Caney, 2nd Andrea Moore, vote 6-0)

Brian Stern, Chair
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THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 13,2020 1:00 - 5:00PM Library Board Room 210
Attendees: Nancie Dupier, Sheri Gordon, Jay DesMarteau, Jim Foster, Lee Caney, Andrea
Moore and Brian Stern

1. Library 1:00PM - 1:30PM
2. Earthplace 1:30PM - 2:00PM
3. Transit District 2:00PM - 2:30PM
4. Health District 2:30PM - 3:00PM
5. Human Services 3:00PM - 3:30PM
6. Information Technology 3:30PM - 4:00PM
7. Police/EMS/RR Parking 4:00PM - 4:30PM
8. Fire/Building/PS&BC 4:30PM - 5:00PM
9. Other matters needing budget review/ general budget discussion

Meeting adjourned at 5:17pm.

Respectively submitted by Andrea Moore, Vice Chair
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Item #7

WESTPORT, CONNECTICUT

OFFICE OF THE TOWN ATTORNEY

MEMORANDUM
Date: February 24,2020
To:  Members of the Board of Finance
CC:  James S. Marpe, First Selectman
Gary Conrad, Finance Director
Helen Garten, Chair of First Selectman’s Real Property Committee

From: Eileen Lavigne Flug, Assistant Town Attorney

Re: 2020 Lease between the Town of Westport and the Parent Child Center, Inc. (“PCC”)
(the “Hillspoint School Lease™)

In preparation for your review of the new Hillspoint School Lease, and in compliance with the
Policy on the Lease of Town Property, attached are following documents:

1) Term Sheet and Lease, including a redline of the Lease back to the 2005 Lease.

2) Letters from PCC dated April 10, 2019 requesting renewal of the lease and dated May
28, 2019 regarding use of the space, programming, and financial matters.
(Attachments are excluded as they are replaced with the current financials (item 3
below) and current report of property expenses paid by PCC (item8 below).

3) Current financial statements of PCC and its subtenants: the Learning Community Day
School, Inc., Saugatuck Child Care Services, and The Children’s Community
Development Center, Inc. (attached separately in the email to you).

4) Background Report prepared by Helen Garten, attaching Report of the First
Selectman’s Real Property Committee dated February 10, 2020.

5) Fire Marshall Nathaniel Gibbons’ inspection report dated January 31, 2020.

6) Superintendent Mike Frawley (DPW)’s Annual Facility Inspection dated February 19,
2020 including list of capital/major maintenance projects anticipated through 2029.

7) Report of property expenses paid out of PCC Account for past 3 years.

8) Report of property improvements made and paid for by PCC and the 3 schools, for
past 3 years.

9) Lease revenues for the past 3 years.

10) Compliance Statement from Town Attorney’s Office.

11) Field card showing appraised value.

If you need any further information or have any questions in advance of the meeting, please let
me know. Thank you.

Town Hall - 110 Myrtle Avenue + Westport, CT 06880 - Phone (203) 341-1043 - Fax (203) 341-1038 - eflug@westportct.gov



90 HILLSPOINT ROAD

PARENT CHILD CENTER INC. LEASE

LEASE TERM SHEET

. LANDLORD: Town of Westport
. TENANT: Parent Child Center, Inc. (“PCC”)

. SUBTENANTS: Learning Community Day School, Inc., Saugatuck Child Care Services, Inc.,
and Children’s Community Development Center, Inc.

. LEASED PROPERTY: 90 Hillspoint Road. The property is a 6.9 acre parcel located in a
residential district. The building is roughly 39,000 sq. ft. The property has been leased to the
PCC and occupied by the three non-profit organizations since 1980. Since that time, the P&Z
Commission has consistently issued positive §8-24 reports for the continued leasing of the
building. The last positive §8-24 report was issued in 2004 for the current lease. The Board of
Finance also recommended the prior Hillspoint School Lease in April 2005 and a five-year
renewal in 2015, which expires August 31, 2020,

. RENT: The first year’s rent will be $64,726.95 with a 2.5% annual increase thereafter. See
Schedule A to the Lease for the escalation chart,

. TERM: Ten years commencing September 1, 2020, with one 5-year option to renew.

. SECURITY DEPOSIT: None

. TOWN SERVICES REQUIRED: The Town reserves the right to use the playing fields
located in the rear of the building and is responsible for maintaining such fields. The Lessee is
responsible for all other maintenance of the building and grounds, except that major repairs and
maintenance are paid out of the Parent Child Center Account as described below. The Lessee is
also responsible for all operating costs, including utilities.

. ESCROW ACCOUNT FOR MAJOR REPAIRS: Out of each year’s rent, $15,000 is
deposited into the General Fund, and the remaining amount is deposited into an escrow account
entitled the “Parent Child Center Account” (“PCC Account™), which is owned and administered
by the Town and used to pay for the repair or replacement of structural and/or mechanical
components in excess of $1,500. The $15,000 General Fund deposit is an increase from the
$10,000 deposit in the 2005 lease, and the $1,500 threshold repair and maintenance amount is an
increase from $1,000 in the 2005 lease. These amounts were determined based on the current
balance of the PCC Account and anticipated major repairs. The current balance of the PCC
Account is $387,370.25 as of January 30, 2020. The two major capital projects anticipated are a
new roof ($250,000 estimated) and repaving the driveway (($250,000 estimated). The PCC
Account is not available for ordinary repairs or maintenance, which are the responsibility of the



10.

Lessee. To the extent any structural or mechanical repair in excess of $1,500 is necessary and
neither the Town nor the Lessee elects to make or pay for the excess cost of such repair, the lease
will terminate.

TOWN’S RIGHT TO RECLAIM THE PROPERTY: Section 13 of the Lease gives the
Town the right to terminate the Lease and reclaim the premises for municipal purposes with
notice to the tenant, in which event the tenant must vacate no later than twelve (12) months after
the end of the current school year. If the termination is due to the Board of Education’s need to
use the premises as a school due to an Act of God or other casualty, the notice period is
shortened to twelve (12) months after the date of the termination notice.



TOWN OF WESTPORT, CONNECTICUT
THE PARENT CHILD CENTER, INC. LEASE

This lease, (hereinafter the “Lease”) is made this day of 20
by and between the Town of Westport, (hereinafter the “TOWN”), a municipal corporation of
the State of Connecticut, acting‘herein by James S. Marpe, its First Selectman, and the PARENT
CHILD CENTER, INC., (the “PCC”) a non-profit corporation of the State of Connecticut,
(hereinafter the “CESSEE”) acting herein by its President.

WHEREAS, the TOWN is interested in maintaining an educational use at the Hillspoint
Elementary School and in maintaining the character of the community immediately surrounding
the School; and

WHEREAS, the LESSEE oversees a preschool/day care center at the Hillspoint
Elementary School; and

WHEREAS, the TOWN desires to rent the School and the real property of which the
School is a part to the LESSEE subject to the terms and conditions of this Lease;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants of the parties, it is hereby

agreed as follows:

1) Lease
The TOWN hereby demises and leases unto the LESSEE and the LESSEE hereby
hires ‘and takes from the TOWN for the term and covenants and upon the rentals
hereinafter specified, the premises known as the Hillspoint Elementary School together
with the real property of which the School is a part, owned by the TOWN and located at
90 Hillspoint Road, Westport, Connecticut, as shown on Westport Land Records Map
Number 7434 (hereinafter, the “Premises”).

2) Term; Option to Renew
Unless earlier terminated pursuant to the provisions hereof, the initial term of the Lease
shall be for ten (10) years commencing September 1, 2020 and ending August 31, 2030.
At the expiration of the initial term, this Lease shall be renewable for one additional five
(5) year term as follows: The LESSEE shall notify the TOWN of its intention to renew
this Lease no later than May 31, 2029. The TOWN shall, no later than August 31, 2029,
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3)

4)

notify the LESSEE of its acceptance or rejection of the renewal. If the TOWN fails to
notify the LESSEE by such date, it shall be considered as acceptance of the renewal, and
this Lease shall thereby be renewed through August 31, 2035.

Rent; Terms of Payment

The annual rents will be those outlined in Schedule A. The annual rent shall be payable
in twelve equal monthly payments, due and payable on the first day of each month,
commencing on September 1, 2020, Rents received after the 10™ day of the month will be
considered a late payment and the TOWN may, at its option, assess interest on the late
payment at the rate of one and one-half percent (1 2 %) per month. Failure to pay rent
shall be a default as provided in paragraph 23. Any liability for unpaid rent shall survive

the termination of this Lease.

Rents shall be paid directly to the Town of Westport and sent to the office of the Finance
Director, 110 Myrtle Avenue, Westport, CT. The TOWN will deposit the annual rental
amounts outlined in Schedule A as follows:

(i) $15,000 of each annual rental amount shall be deposited into the TOWN’S General
Fund; and

(ii) The remaining portion of each annual rental amount shall be deposited into an escrow
fund entitled the Parent-Child Center Escrow Fund (hereinafter referred to as, “the PCC
Account”) which includes all assets and liabilities of the account formerly known as the

“Hillspoint Account.” Funds in the PCC Account will be the property of the TOWN.

Maintenance; Repairs; Option to Terminate

(a) LESSEE shall keep the Premises, including all improvements, furniture and fixtures
therein, in good order and repair throughout the term of this Lease. Except as provided in
subparagraph (b) hereof, all operating expenses and all maintenance of and repairs to the
Premises, (and the personal property installed thereon), shall be the responsibility of the
LESSEE, and except as provided in paragraph 5, shall be performed at the expense of the
LESSEE.

For purposes of this paragraph 4, the term “operating expenses” shall include all expenses

and costs payable in connection with the operation of the Premises including, but not



limited to, the cost of utilities (e.g. water, electricity, fuel, telephone, garbage removal,
alarm systems), and all supplies and materials used in the operation of the Premises.
Repairs and maintenance shall include, but not be limited to, all major and minor, capital
or ordinary repairs to the Premises, interior alterations, installation and repair of fencing
and playscapes, mowing, snow removal and grounds maintenance. The LESSEE shall
also keep the sidewalks, driveways and parking areas of the Premises clean and free of

obstructions, including snow and ice.

The TOWN reserves the right to make reasonable inspections, upon reasonable notice, of
the Premises to ensure that appropriate steps are being taken to maintain the Premises. If
it is determined by the TOWN, in its sole discretion, that necessary repairs and/or
maintenance are/is not taking place, the TOWN shall direct the LESSEE to undertake
such repairs or maintenance. Such repair or maintenance shall be done by appropriately
licensed professionals. If the LESSEE fails to comply with any such reasonable
directive, the TOWN may, at its option, terminate this Lease immediately or undertake
the repairs and/or maintenance, in which case the LESSEE agrees to reimburse the
TOWN for any expenses incurred for such repair or maintenance within thirty (30) days
of the completion thereof. If the LESSEE fails to reimburse the TOWN for all expenses
incurred within the required thirty (30) day limit, the TOWN may, at its option, terminate

this Lease immediately and proceed in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 23.

(b) The Town shall be responsible for the grounds keeping of the playing fields as
designated on Exhibit A hereto and shall be responsible for the maintenance and repair of
the two (2) baseball backstops located on such fields. Any other equipment (for example,
playground equipment or fences) installed on such fields by LESSEE or any Agency (as
defined herein) or other subtenant shall be maintained by LESSEE or such Agency or

subtenant, as the case may be.



S)

6)

The PCC Account; Replacement and/or Repair of Major Components

The PCC Account will be administered by the TOWN and will be used to pay for the
replacement or repair of major components. For purposes of this paragraph, the term
“major components” shall mean all structural and/or mechanical repairs or replacements

in excess of one thousand five hundred dollars (§1,500).

Requests for replacement or repair of major components will be initiated by LESSEE and
submitted to the Department of Public Works (DPW) of the Town of Westport. Upon
approval of the request, DPW will follow established Town procedures to accomplish the
replacement or repair of such major component(s). The Controller of the Town of
Westport will also follow established Town procedures to accomplish payments for the
replacement or repair of the major component(s) and to charge the PCC Account

accordingly.

Limit on the Repair or Replacement of Major Components

Notwithstanding anything in this Lease to the contrary, to the extent the TOWN has any
obligation to replace or repair major components, such obligation shall be limited to the
funds in the PCC Account. If the repair or replacement of a major component is
necessary, or if any other repair or replacement of a major component not contemplated
as of the date of this Lease is necessary, and the cost of such repair or replacement
exceeds the amount in the PCC Account, then the LESSEE shall be responsible for the
excess cost and will make such repair or replacement in accordance with the provisions
of paragraph 4 hereof. If LESSEE fails to make or pay for the excess cost of a repair or
replacement described in the preceding sentence and the TOWN elects not to pay the

excess cost, then this Lease shall terminate as follows:

1) Twelve months after the conclusion of the school year in which the notice to
terminate is delivered by either party in the case of a repair or replacement which does

not jeopardize the health or safety of individuals occupying the Premises; or

(ii) Immediately upon the determination by any state or local authority that the failure
to make such repair or replacement could jeopardize the health or safety of individuals

occupying the Premises.



7)

The period between the date of delivery of the termination notice and the effective date of
termination shall be referred to as the “Notice Period”. If the Lease is terminated in
accordance with Subparagraph 6(i), then, during the Notice Period: (a) LESSEE shall be
relieved of any responsibility for the cost of the repair or replacement of major
components; and (b) LESSEE’S obligation to otherwise maintain the Premises in
accordance with the terms of this Lease as well as all other obligations of the LESSEE

hereunder, including the obligation to pay rent, shall continue in full force and effect.

Compliance with State Fire Safety Code; Option to Terminate

In addition to the responsibilities of the LESSEE set forth in paragraph 4 and 6 and
notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph 5, the LESSEE shall comply with the
requirements of the Connecticut Fire Safety Code and shall be responsible for any and all
minor and major work including, but not limited to, renovations and structural alterations
required at any time during the period of this Lease, to bring the leased Premises into
compliance with said Code. The TOWN reserves the right to make reasonable
inspections, of the Premises, upon reasonable notice, to ensure that the appropriate steps
are being taken by the LESSEE to comply with the aforesaid Code. If it is determined by
the TOWN, in its sole discretion, that the necessary work is not done or not being done,
the TOWN shall direct the LESSEE to perform such work. All work shall be done by
appropriately licensed professionals. If the LESSEE fails to comply with such reasonable
directive, the TOWN may, at its option, terminate this Lease immediately or undertake
the necessary work to bring the building “up to code,” in which case the LESSEE agrees
to reimburse the TOWN for any expenses incurred in and as the result of such work
within thirty (30) days of the completion of the work. If the LESSEE fails to reimburse
the TOWN for all expenses incurred within the required thirty (30) day limit, as the case
may be, the TOWN may, at its option, terminate this Lease immediately and proceed in

accordance with the provisions of paragraph 23.

LESSEE will not permit the parking of any vehicles in any manner which interferes
with the driveways, sidewalks and fire lanes and any other areas desired to be kept clear

by the TOWN.



8) No Assignment or Subletting
The TOWN acknowledges that the Premises are currently being sublet to The Learning
Community Day School, Inc., Saugatuck Child Care Services, Inc. and the Children’s
Community Development Center, Inc. (hereinafter “the AGENCIES”). It is anticipated
that the LESSEE and the AGENCIES will be able to resolve among themselves which
days and hours the gymnasium, playing fields and other facilities will be used by each

Agency.

Prior to the effectiveness of this Lease, the LESSEE shall provide to the TOWN
originally signed indemnity and hold harmless agreements from each AGENCY in the
form attached hereto as Exhibit B hereto, as well as the insurance certificate(s) required
thereby. LESSEE shall notify the TOWN immediately if there is any AGENCY no

longer sublets space at the Premises.

The LESSEE may neither sublet the Premises, or any portion thereof, to an entity other
than specified herein, nor may it assign this Lease without the prior written approval of
the TOWN, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. A condition precedent
to the Town’s approving an assignment of the Lease is a review of and adjustment to the

annual rent schedule. (See Schedule A).

9) Use of Premises
(a) The Premises shall be used only for child care and educational purposes and
fundraising activities in connection therewith. The LESSEE expressly agrees not to use
or permit the Premises to be used for any other purpose without the prior written approval
of the TOWN. It shall not be deemed unreasonable to withhold approval for uses other

than for child care, education and fundraising activities associated therewith.

(b)  The LESSEE shall have exclusive use of the Premises, subject to such rights of
inspection and use as are reserved to the TOWN in this Lease. The LESSEE shall have
the exclusive use of the parking areas between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m.,
Monday through Friday. The outside playing fields described in Exhibit A attached
hereto and incorporated herein shall be used in common with the TOWN and others to

whom such right may be given, subject to the right of the TOWN to adopt a schedule of

-6-



use of the outside play areas by the LESSEE and others. It is understood that, in the
event the TOWN and the LESSEE propose events that would conflict with each other,
the TOWN event is to be accorded priority. The LESSEE may submit to the TOWN a
list of proposed restrictions on use of the play areas by others. Upon approval by the
TOWN, the LESSEE may enforce those restrictions against others who use the play

arcas.

() The TOWN reserves the right to utilize the gymnasium and common area for
programs sponsored by TOWN departments or agencies at any time after 6:00 p.m.,
daily, and all day on Saturdays, Sundays and holidays upon reasonable notice to the
LESSEE. In addition, the common area shall be made available to the Registrars of
Voters for voting purposes for any regular or special election from 6:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.
on the day of such election, plus reasonable set-up and breakdown time before and after
any election day, and for any other occasion when it is needed for voting purposes. The
TOWN shall keep a record of expenses attributable to the TOWN’S use of the building

and shall be responsible for paying for these expenses directly.

(d) Where outside groups or agencies wish to use the leased Premises, or any portion
thereof, for any planned event, permission shall be obtained from the TOWN and the
LESSEE and such outside group or agency shall submit evidence of insurance in amounts
satisfactory to the TOWN. The LESSEE shall have no liability for any damage or injuries

sustained by any person or property during the course of, or as the result of, such use.

(e) Except as provided herein, the LESSEE agrees that its use of the leased Premises
shall not interfere with the use of the grounds by the TOWN.

10) Quiet Enjoyment
The LESSEE shall peaceably and quietly have, hold and enjoy the leased Premises for
the terms aforesaid in common with others, subject to performance of the covenants of

this Lease in all respects on the part of the LESSEE.

11) Condition of Premises; Alterations and Improvements

The Premises are leased from the TOWN “as is” and as they stand at the time of the
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commencement of this Lease and without any representations on the part of the TOWN
or its agents. Except as provided in paragraphs 4, 6, and 7, no improvements, alterations,
additions or changes of a structural nature shall be made to the Premises without the prior
written consent of the TOWN, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. No
playground or playground equipment except for that which exists as of the date of this
Lease may be erected without the prior written permission of the TOWN. All
improvements, alterations, additions or changes shall be made in accordance with all
applicable laws, codes, ordinances and regulations including but not limited to all
applicable zoning regulations. Prior to the commencement of any alteration or
improvement by any contractor, the TOWN will be provided with a certificate of insurance
for such contractor, showing public liability coverage, workers' compensation coverage and
any other coverage reasonably required by the TOWN, which certificate names the TOWN
as an additional insured and provides that the coverage will not be canceled or not renewed

without at least fifteen (15) days advance notice to the TOWN.

12) Compliance with Laws
The LESSEE shall observe and comply with all Federal and State laws, rules and
regulations, including licensing laws, which regulate the operation of LESSEE’S and the
AGENCIES’ activities. LESSEE also agrees to observe and comply with all State and
Federal laws and the ordinances, rules and regulations of the TOWN insofar as the
Premises, and the LESSEE’s use thereof, are concerned. LESSEE shall indemnify and
save the TOWN harmless from and against any damage, liability, fines, penalties and
costs imposed upon the TOWN for LESSEE’S or any AGENCY’S violation of or non-

compliance with same.

13) Right to Reclaim Premises
The TOWN shall have the right to terminate this Lease and reclaim the Premises for any
municipal purpose. For purposes of this paragraph, the term “municipal purpose” shall
include, but shall not be limited to, reactivation of the Premises as a school within the
Westport School system, use of the Premises for Town or Board of Education
administrative offices, or the sale of the Premises for any purpose to any party. In the
event the TOWN wishes to terminate this Lease and reclaim the Premises, the TOWN
will give the LESSEE notice, in writing, of its intention to do so and the LESSEE shall
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vacate the Premises no later than twelve (12) months from the conclusion of the school
year within which the TOWN notifies LESSEE of its intention to reclaim the Premises.
In addition to the foregoing, the TOWN may, at its option, terminate or suspend this
Lease upon twelve (12) months written notice in the event that, through an Act of God or
other casualty beyond the control of the parties, it becomes necessary for the Board of

Education of the Town of Westport to utilize the leased Premises for school purposes.

14) Vacating Premises
The LESSEE will commit no waste, nor suffer the same to be committed on the
Premises, nor injure nor misuse the same. The LESSEE will deliver the Premises at the
expiration of the Lease term, or sooner termination, free of all personal property, in as
good condition as they now are in, or as they may be placed by reason of any

improvements, alteration, additions or changes, subject to reasonable use and wear.

15) Option to Purchase
Upon the receipt of a bona fide offer to purchase the Premises which the TOWN is
willing to accept, the TOWN will notify LESSEE of such offer in writing and will grant
to LESSEE the option to purchase the Premises at the same price and upon the same
terms and conditions offered. The option granted to LESSEE by the TOWN hereunder
shall be effective provided notice of the exercise of the option by LESSEE is given
pursuant to paragraph 16 of this Agreement and a contract to purchase the Premises is

delivered in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 16 of this Agreement.

16) Exercise of Option
LESSEE must exercise the option set forth in paragraph 15 by: (1) giving notice in
writing of its intention to exercise the option to the TOWN on the date that is fifteen (15)
calendar days from the date on which LESSEE received written notice from the TOWN
of a bona fide offer to purchase as prescribed in paragraph 15 of this Agreement; and (2)
signing a mutually agreeable contract to purchase the Premises and returning such
contract to the TOWN on the date that is thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which
LESSEE received written notice from the TOWN of a bona fide offer to purchase as
prescribed in paragraph 15. Thereafter, LESSEE shall close the sale of the Premises

within a reasonable period of time.



17) Time is of the Essence: Termination of Option
Time is of the essence with respect to the option set forth in paragraph 15 and all dates set
forth in paragraph 16, and such option shall cease and terminate in the event that it is not
exercised as hereinabove stated. In the event LESSEE fails to effectively exercise the
option in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 16, the option shall cease, expire,
and terminate. In such event, the TOWN shall be free to offer for sale and negotiate with
any third party or entity with respect to the sale of the Premises and convey and/or sell

the Premises to any other third party.

18) Signage
No sign, advertisement or notice shall be affixed to or placed upon any part of the
exterior of the demised Premises by the LESSEE, except in such manner and of such
size, design and color as shall be approved in advance by the Planning and Zoning

Commission,

19) No Liability for Loss or Damage
Except for those periods of time when the TOWN uses the building or grounds and
except for the TOWN’s failure to perform any of its obligations set forth herein, the
TOWN shall not be responsible for the loss or damage to property, or injury to persons,
occurring in or about the demised Premises by reason of any existing or future condition,
defect, manner or thing of said Premises or the property of which the Premises are a part,
or for the acts, omissions or negligence of other persons or subtenants in and about the
Premises The LESSEE shall indemnify and save the TOWN harmless against and from
any final judgments rendered by courts of competent jurisdiction, including attorney’s
fees, by reason of any injury to a person or persons or damages to the property of the
LESSEE or arising out of the use and occupancy of the demised Premises, including
playground equipment erected by the LESSEE or any of the AGENCIES, sidewalks
connecting the demised Premises with the parking lots, and the parking lot and driveways
of the TOWN, provided said injury or damage is not caused by a breach of the TOWN’s
covenants and agreement hereunder. The LESSEE shall also be responsible for and

indemnify the TOWN for any damages resulting from the acts or omissions of its sub-
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tenants, if any,

20) Insurance

LESSEE and the AGENCIES shall each secure and keep in force the following

insurance coverages during the term of this Lease, ensuring the TOWN, its agents,

officers and employees against any and all claims arising from the use of the leased

Premises, (including without limitation the sidewalks connecting the Premises with

the parking lot, the parking lot, the driveways and the grounds), by the LESSEE, the

AGENCIES and/or its or their officers, agents, employees , students, business and/or

social guests::

A. Workers compensation insurance required by law with employers liability limits for
at least the amounts of liability for bodily injury by accident of $ 500,000 each
accident and bodily injury by disease of $500,000 including a waiver of subrogation.

B. Commercial general liability insurance policy, including abuse and molestation, with
an edition date of 1986 or later including products and completed operations. Limits
shall be at least: Bodily injury & property damage with an occurrence limit of
$1,000,000; Personal & advertising injury limit of $1,000,000 per occurrence;
General aggregate limit of $2,000,000 (other than products and completed
operations); and Products and completed operations aggregate limit of $2,000,000.
The policy shall name the TOWN as an additional insured and include ISO Form CG
2026 or equivalent.

o Such coverage will be provided on an occurrence basis and will be primary
and shall not contribute in any way to any insurance or self-insured retention
carried by the TOWN.

e The policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of the TOWN.
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e Such coverage shall contain a broad form contractual liability endorsement or
wording within the policy form to comply with the hold harmless and
indemnity provision of the contract

e Deductible and self-insured retentions shall be declared and are subject to the
approval of the TOWN.

C. Umbrella or excess liability policy in the amount of $5,000,000 each occurrence and
$5,000,000 in the aggregate. Such umbrella or excess liability policies of the
LESSEE and each AGENCY shall apply to all of the underlying insurance
requirements of this Lease, including but not limited to abuse and molestation
coverage.

D. Professional Liability. Professional liability insurance for errors and omissions
arising out of any breach of duty, neglect, error, misstatement, or omission committed
in the course of their duties. Such policy shall contain limits of liability in the amount
of $1,000,000 each occurrence and $3,000,000 in the aggregate.

E. Abuse and Molestation. Separate abuse and molestation insurance policy if not
included in commercial general liability insurance. Such policy shall contain limits
of liability in the amount of $1,000,000 each occurrence and $2,000,000 in the
aggregate,

All liability coverages shall name the TOWN as an additional insured.

Except as provided herein, upon the renewal of this Lease as provided in paragraph 2, the
amount of liability insurance may be reviewed and increased or decreased as is deemed
necessary by the TOWN. It shall be the responsibility of the LESSEE and each
AGENCY to notify each of their carriers of its primary status. Certificates of Insurance
indicating that such policies are in full force and effect shall be delivered to and retained
by the TOWN upon execution of this LEASE; and, such certificates shall be executed by

a licensed representative of the participating insurer(s). Said certificates must name the
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TOWN as additional insured, contain the required endorsements, and contain a clause
granting at least thirty (30) days written notice to the TOWN of the intent to effect
cancellation, non-renewal or other material change which may have an adverse effect on
the policies of insurance referred to in the certificate. The premiums shall be paid by the

LESSEE and the AGENCIES.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event the TOWN is notified by its insurance
carrier, prior to the date of renewal of this Lease, that industry standards require an
increase in the liability insurance coverage required pursuant to this paragraph 20, the
TOWN shall notify LESSEE, in writing, of such increase and the LESSEE and each
AGENCY shall have one (1) year from the date of such notice to deliver to the TOWN a

certificate of insurance evidencing such increased liability insurance.

21) Damage to Premises
It is further agreed that, in case the Premises are damaged by fire or other cause to the
extent which, in the sole discretion of the TOWN, renders the repair or reconstruction
thereof impractical, this Lease shall terminate and LESSEE’s obligation to maintain and
repair shall terminate. Rent shall be paid up to the time of such destruction. However,
the TOWN shall take into consideration the TOWN?s fire insurance policy on the
Premises and shall consult with the LESSEE in determining the practicality of repairing
or reconstructing the Premises, with a view towards effectuating the intent of the Lease.

The termination of this Lease under this paragraph shall not constitute breach of contract.

22) Holding Over
In the event that the LESSEE shall remain in the demised Premises after the expiration of
the term of this Lease and any renewal period without having executed a new written
lease with the TOWN, such holding over shall not constitute a renewal or extension of
this Lease. The TOWN may, at its option, elect to treat the LESSEE as one who had not
removed at the end of its term, and thereupon be entitled to all the remedies against the
LESSEE provided by law in that situation, or the TOWN may elect, at its option, to
construe such holding over a tenancy from month-to-month, subject to all the terms and

conditions of this Lease, except as to duration thereof.
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23) Default; Termination
This Lease shall terminate in accordance with the provisions of paragraphs 4, 6 and 7.
Further, if the rent shall remain unpaid thirty (30) days after the same shall become due
and payable as required in paragraph 3, or if the LESSEE fails to comply with any other
term or condition of this Lease and such failure continues for a period of ninety (90) days
after notice thereof has been given to LESSEE, this Lease shall thereupon by virtue of
this express stipulation, at the option of the TOWN, expire and terminate, and the TOWN
may, at any time thereafter, re-enter the Premises, and recover possession thereof in the
manner prescribed by the statute relating to summary process. The foregoing rights and
remedies are not intended to be exclusive, but are additional to all rights and remedies the

parties would otherwise have by law.

24) No Waiver
No waiver by the TOWN of any violation or breach of condition by the LESSEE shall
constitute or be construed as a waiver of any other violation or breach of condition, nor
shall acceptance of rent after default or lapse of time after breach of condition by the
L.ESSEE before the TOWN shall exercise its option under paragraph 23 operate to defeat
the right of the TOWN to declare this Lease null and void and to re-enter upon the

demised Premises after the said breach or violation.

25) Costs of Enforcing Lease
The LESSEE agrees to be responsible for and reimburse the TOWN for reasonable
attorney’s fees and disbursements which the TOWN may be obligated to expend in
connection with any breach by the LESSEE of any of the terms, conditions or provisions

of this Lease upon final judgment being rendered by a court of competent jurisdiction,

26) Notices
All notices required under the terms of this Lease must be in writing. Notices from the
LESSEE to the TOWN shall be sent by registered or certified mail or delivered to the
TOWN at the First Selectman’s Office, Town Hall, Westport, Connecticut 06880.
Notices from the TOWN to the LESSEE shall be sent by registered or certified mail to
the LESSEE at its corporate office located at 90 Hillspoint Road, Westport, Connecticut
06880.
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All notices shall be effective upon receipt. Notice must be given to the other party at the
address indicated in this paragraph 26 or to such other address designated by a party by
notice. Provided however, the TOWN shall not be required to give notice to more than
one address, and if more than one address is specified, TOWN may choose any one

address of those designated by LESSEE.

27) Severability

The provisions of this Lease are severable, and if any provision shall be determined to be
invalid or unenforceable, the provision shall be enforced to the extent permitted by law
and, to the extent any provision or portion thereof remains unenforceable or invalid, it
shall be severed from this Lease and the remainder of the Lease shall be valid and

enforced to the fullest extent permitted by the law.

=15 -



Dated and signed this day of 20
WITNESS: TOWN OF WESTPORT:
By:
James S. Marpe
First Selectman
WITNESS: PARENT CHILD CENTER, INC.:

Approved as to form:

By:

Print Name:
Its President, duly authorized

Approved as to compliance with the
Charter of the Town of Westport:

Eileen Lavigne Flug
Assistant Town Attorney

Gary Conrad
Finance Department
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT)
) SS. Westport ,20__
COUNTY OF FAIRFIELD )

Personally appeared before me James S. Marpe, First Selectman, Signer and Sealer of the
foregoing instrument, being duly authorized, he acknowledged the same to be his free act and
deed, before me.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:

STATE OF CONNECTICUT)
) SS. Westport ,20
COUNTY OF FAIRFIELD )

Personally appeared before me , President, The Parent Child
Center, Inc., Signer and Sealer of the foregoing instrument, being duly authorized, she
acknowledged the same to be her free act and deed, before me.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:
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SCHEDULEA
Annual Rents
YEAR RENT YEAR RENT
2020-2021 $64.726.95 2028-2029 $78.863.50
2021-2022 $66.345.12 2029- $80.835.09
2030
2022-2023 $68.003.75 2030-2031 $82,855.96
2023-2024 $69.703.84 2031-2032 $84.927.36
2024-2025 $71.446.44 2032-2033 $87.050.55
2025-2026 $73.232.60 2033-2034 $89,226.81
2026-2027 $75.063.41 2034- $91.,457.48
2035
2027-2028 $76.940.00

2019-2020 rent is $63,148.24.

Note: $15,000 of each annual rental amount shall be deposited into the Town’s General Fund.
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EXHIBIT A

OUTSIDE PLAYING FIELDS (TOWN MAINTAINED AREAS)

-19-



)
) TOWN OF WESTPOK I' LEASE WITH PCC
HILLSPOINT SCHOOL PROPERTY

EXHIBIT A —_— _
Town-Maintained Areag . :

Town-maintained area:

F.Crmdn &

g
; . T —_——
R T SCALE: 1"=84"+
! ‘HiILLSPOIW T - ROAD .




EXHIBIT B

INDEMNITY AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT
TO BE OBTAINED FROM AGENCIES

-20 -



INDEMNITY AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT

This Indemnity and Hold Harmless Agreement (“Agreement”) is made this day of
,20 by [PRINT NAME OF AGENCY]
("Indemnitor") of [PRINT ADDRESS] for the benefit of the

Town of Westport, a municipality in the State of Connecticut ("Town").

WHEREAS, Indemnitor is authorized, pursuant to Section 8 of that certain lease between The
Parent Child Center, Inc. and the Town of Westport entitled “The Parent Child Center, Inc. Lease,”
dated as of , 2020, (the “Lease,” a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit

A), to sublet a portion of the Town-owned premises at 90 Hillspoint Road, Westport, Connecticut (the

“Premises”);

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of Indemnitor’s receipt of said authorization from the Town,

Indemnitor agrees as follows:

1. Indemnitor’s authorization by the Town to sublet the Premises is subject to all termination provisions
of the Lease. This Agreement shall survive any such termination of the Lease, and Indemnitor shall
remain bound by the terms of this Agreement.

2. Indemnitor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Town and its agents, officers and
employees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, from and against any and all losses, claims,
allegations, actions, awards, costs and expenses (including but not limited to, court costs and
attorney's fees), judgments, subrogations and damages of every kind and character which may arise
out of or result from, in whole or in part, Indemnitor’s use of the Premises, or from the negligent or
willful acts or omissions of the Indemnitor or any of its employees or agents, subcontractors, third
parties invited or authorized by the Indemnitor to enter the Premises, and/or anyone else for whose
acts Indemnitor may be liable, in connection with the Indemnitor’s use of the Premises.

3. Indemnitor shall (i) make no improvements or alterations to the Premises that are not permitted by the
Lease, (ii) relinquish the Premises upon expiration or termination of the Lease, and (iii) use the
Premises in strict compliance with the terms and conditions of the Lease and all policies, procedures
and conditions relating to the use of Town-owned properties, and in accordance with all applicable
laws, rules, regulations and ordinances of all governmental authorities.

4, Indemnitor shall safeguard all who come upon the Premises and shall protect against any personal
injuries and property damage resulting from Indemnitor’s use of the Premises.

5. Indemnitor shall secure and keep in force the following insurance coverages during the term of the Lease,
ensuring the Town, its agents, officers, and employees against any and all claims arising from the use of
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the Premises (including without limitation the sidewalks connecting the Premises with the parking lot, the

parking lot, the driveways and the grounds), by the Indemnitor and/or its officers, agents, employees,,
students, business and/or social guests:

a.

Workers compensation insurance required by law with employers liability limits for at
least the amounts of liability for bodily injury by accident of $ 500,000 each accident and
bodily injury by disease of $500,000 including a waiver of subrogation.

Commercial general liability insurance policy, including abuse and molestation, with an
edition date of 1986 or later including products and completed operations. Limits shall be
at least: Bodily injury & property damage with an occurrence limit of $1,000,000;
Personal & advertising injury limit of $1,000,000 per occurrence; General aggregate limit
of $2,000,000 (other than products and completed operations); and Products and
completed operations aggregate limit of $2,000,000.

i. The policy shall name the Town as an additional insured and include ISO Form
CG 2026 or equivalent.

ii. Such coverage will be provided on an occurrence basis and will be primary and
shall not contribute in any way to any insurance or self-insured retention carried
by the Town.

iii. The policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of the Town.

iv. Such coverage shall contain a broad form contractual liability endorsement or
wording within the policy form to comply with the hold harmless and indemnity
provision of the contract

v. Deductible and self-insured retentions shall be declared and are subject to the
approval of the Town.

Umbrella or excess liability policy in the amount of $5,000,000 each occurrence and
$5,000,000 in the aggregate. Such umbrella or excess liability policies of the Indemnitor
shall apply to all of the underlying insurance requirements of this Agreement, including
but not limited to abuse and molestation coverage.

Professional Liability. Professional liability insurance for errors and omissions arising out
of any breach of duty, neglect, error, misstatement, or omission committed in the course of
the duties of the Indemnitor or its agents, officers or employees. Such policy shall contain
limits of liability in the amount of $1,000,000 each occurrence and $3,000,000 in the
aggregate.

Abuse and Molestation. Separate abuse and molestation insurance policy if not included

in commercial general liability insurance. Such policy shall contain limits of liability in
the amount of $1,000,000 each occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate.

All liability coverages shall name the Town as an additional insured.

Except as provided herein, upon the renewal of the Lease as provided in paragraph 2
thereof, the amount of liability insurance may be reviewed and increased or decreased as
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is deemed necessary by the Town. It shall be the responsibility of the Indemnitor to
notify each of its carriers of its primary status. Certificates of Insurance indicating that
such policies are in full force and effect shall be delivered to and retained by the Town
upon execution of the Lease; and, such certificates shall be executed by a licensed
representative of the participating insurer(s). Said certificates must name the Town as
additional insured, contain the required endorsements, and contain a clause granting at
least thirty (30) days written notice to the Town of the intent to effect cancellation, non-
renewal or other material change which may have an adverse effect on the policies of
insurance referred to in the certificate. The premiums shall be paid by the Indemnitor.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event the Town is notified by its insurance carrier,
prior to the date of renewal of the Lease, that industry standards require an increase in the
liability insurance coverage required pursuant to paragraph 20 of the Lease, the Town
shall notify the Parent Child Center, Inc., in writing, of such increase and the Indemnitor
shall have one (1) year from the date of such notice to deliver to the Town a certificate of
insurance evidencing such increased liability insurance.

6. This Agreement and the Town’s authorization of the Indemnitor to use the Premises shall not be
assigned by Indemnitor without the prior written approval of the Town.

7. This Agreement supersedes any and all prior agreements and understandings between the Town and
the Indemnitor regarding the subject matter of this Agreement. This Agreement shall be governed and
interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Connecticut. No provision of this Agreement
shall be deemed waived by the Town unless the waiver is in a signed writing. Any provision of this
Agreement that is deemed unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction shall be deemed amended
and construed to have a valid meaning that is the most protective to the Town, and if no such validating
construction is possible shall be severed from this Agreement, and the enforceability of the remaining
provisions shall not be impaired thereby.

8. This Agreement shall be binding on Indemnitor and its heirs, executors, administrators, successors
and assigns and shall inure to the benefit of the Town of Westport and its agents, employees, elected and
appointed officials, boards, commissions, committees, volunteers, representatives and assigns.

[NAMES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE]
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WITNESS INDEMNITOR

Print Name: Print Name of the Corporation, LLC, or other Entity
Print Address:

By

Signature of Authorized Signatory

Print Name:

Print Title:
STATE OF CONNECTICUT )

) ss: , Connecticut, 20

COUNTY OF )
Personally appeared signer(s) and sealer of the

foregoing instrument, and acknowledged before me the same to be his/her/their free act and deed, and
acknowledged before me that he or she is authorized to execute this agreement on behalf of the
Indemnitor and to bind the Indemnitor to its terms and that he or she holds the title with the Indemnitor
that is written below his or her name above.

Notary Public

Print Name:

Print Address:

My Commission Expires:
Commissioner of the Superior Court
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TOWN OF WESTPORT, CONNECTICUT
THE PARENT CHILD CENTER, INC. LEASE

This indenturelease, (hereinafter the “Lease”) is made this day of
200520 by and between the Town of Westport, (hereinafter the “TOWN”), a municipal

corporation of the State of Connecticut, acting herein by Diane-Geoss-FarreHJames S. Marpe, its
First SeleetwomanSelectinan, and the PARENT CHILD CENTER, INC., (the “PCC”) a non-

profit corporation of the State of Connecticut, (hereinafter the “LESSEE”) acting herein by its

President,

WHEREAS, the TOWN is interested in maintaining an educational use at the Hillspoint
Elementary School and in maintaining the character of the community immediately surrounding
the School; and

WHEREAS, the LESSEE oversees a preschool/day care center at the Hillspoint
Elementary School; and

WHEREAS, the TOWN desires to rent the School and the real property of which the
School is a part to the LESSEE subject to the terms and conditions of this Lease;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants of the parties, it is hereby

agreed as follows:

1) Lease
The TOWN hereby demises and leases unto the LESSEE and the LESSEE hereby
hires and takes from the TOWN for the term and covenants and upon the rentals
hereinafter specified, the premises known as the Hillspoint Elementary School together
with the real property of which the School is a part, owned by the TOWN and located at
90 Hillspoint Road, Westport, Connecticut, as shown on Westport Land Records Map
Number 7434 (hereinafter, the “Premises”™).

2) Term; Option to Renew
Unless earlier terminated pursuant to the provisions hereof, the initial term of the Lease

shall be for ten (10) years commencing September 1, 20052020 and ending August 31,

-1-
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3)

4)

additional five (5) year term as follows: The LESSEE shall notify the TOWN of its
intention to renew this Lease no later than May 31, 20442029, The TOWN shall, no later
than August 31, 28442029, notify the LESSEE of its acceptance or rejection of the
renewal. If the TOWN fails to notify the LESSEE by such date, it shall be considered as

acceptance of the renewal, and this Lease shall thereby be renewed through August 31,
20202033,

Rent; Terms of Payment

The annual rents will be those outlined in Schedule A. The annual rent shall be payable
in twelve equal monthly payments, due and payable on the first day of each month,
commencing on September 1, 20052020, Rents received after the 10" day of the month
will be considered a late payment and the TOWN may, at its option, assess interest on the
late payment at the rate of one and one-half percent (1 %2 %) per month. Failure to pay
rent shall be a default as provided in paragraph 23. Any liability for unpaid rent shall

survive the termination of this Lease.

Rents shall be paid directly to the Town of Westport and sent to the office of the Finance
Director, 110 Myrtle Avenue, Westport, CT. The TOWN will deposit the annual rental
amounts outlined in Schedule A as follows:

(1) $1615,000 of each annual rental amount shall be deposited into the TOWN’S General
Fund; and

(ii) The remaining portion of each annual rental amount shall be deposited into an escrow
fund entitled the Parent-Child Center Escrow Fund (hereinafter referred to as, “the PCC
Account”) which includes all assets and liabilities of the account formerly known as the

“Hillspoint Account.” Funds in the PCC Account will be the property of the TOWN.

Maintenance; Repairs; Option to Terminate

(a) LESSEE shall keep the Premises, including all improvements, furniture and fixtures
therein, in good order and repair throughout the term of this Lease. Except as provided in
subparagraph (b) hereof, all operating expenses and all maintenance of and repairs to the

Premises, (and the personal property installed thereon), shall be the responsibility of the




LESSEE, and except as provided in paragraph 5, shall be performed at the expense of the
LESSEE.

For purposes of this paragraph 4, the term “operating expenses” shall include all expenses
and costs payable in connection with the operation of the Premises including, but not
limited to, the cost of utilities (e.g. water, electricity, fuel, telephone, garbage removal,
alarm systems), and all supplies and materials used in the operation of the Premises.
Repairs and maintenance shall include, but not be limited to, all major and minor, capital
or ordinary repairs to the Premises, interior alterations, installation and repair of fencing
and playscapes, mowing, snow removal and grounds maintenance. The LESSEE shall
also keep the sidewalks, driveways and parking areas of the Premises clean and free of

obstructions, including snow and ice.

The TOWN reserves the right to make reasonable inspections, upon reasonable notice, of
the Premises to ensure that appropriate steps are being taken to maintain the Premises. If
it is determined by the TOWN, in its sole discretion, that necessary repairs and/or
maintenance are/is not taking place, the TOWN shall direct the LESSEE to undertake
such repairs or maintenance. Such repair or maintenance shall be done by appropriately
licensed professionals. If the LESSEE fails to comply with any such reasonable
directive, the TOWN may, at its option, terminate this Lease immediately or undertake
the repairs and/or maintenance, in which case the LESSEE agrees to reimburse the
TOWN for any expenses incurred for such repair or maintenance within thirty (30) days
of the completion thereof. If the LESSEE fails to reimburse the TOWN for all expenses
incurred within the required thirty (30) day limit, the TOWN may, at its option, terminate

this Lease immediately and proceed in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 23.

(b) The Town shall be responsible for the grounds keeping of the playing fields as
designated on Exhibit A hereto and shall be responsible for the maintenance and repair of
the two (2) baseball backstops located on such fields. Any other equipment (for example,
playground equipment or fences) installed on such fields by LESSEE or any Agency (as
defined herein) or other subtenant shall be maintained by LESSEE or such Agency or

subtenant, as the case may be.
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S)

6)

The PCC Account; Replacement and/or Repair of Major Components

The PCC Account will be administered by the TOWN and will be used to pay for the
replacement or repair of major components. For purposes of this paragraph, the term
“major components” shall mean all structural and/or mechanical repairs or replacements

in excess of one thousand [ive hundred dollars ($1,666500).

Requests for replacement or repair of major components will be initiated by LESSEE and
submitted to the Department of Public Works (DPW) of the Town of Westport, Upon
approval of the request, DPW will follow established Town procedures to accomplish the
replacement or repair of such major component(s). The Controller of the Town of
Westport will also follow established Town procedures to accomplish payments for the
replacement or repair of the major component(s) and to charge the PCC Account

accordingly.

Limit on the Repair or Replacement of Major Components

Notwithstanding anything in this Lease to the contrary, to the extent the TOWN has any
obligation to replace or repair major components, such obligation shall be limited to the
funds in the PCC Account. If the repair or replacement of a major component is
necessary, or if any other repair or replacement of a major component not contemplated
as of the date of this Lease is necessary, and the cost of such repair or replacement
exceeds the amount in the PCC Account, then the LESSEE shall be responsible for the
excess cost and will make such repair or replacement in accordance with the provisions
of paragraph 4 hereof. If LESSEE fails to make or pay for the excess cost of a repair or
replacement described in the preceding sentence and the TOWN elects not to pay the

excess cost, then this Lease shall terminate as follows:
(i) Twelve months after the conclusion of the school year in which the notice to

terminate is delivered by either party in the case of a repair or replacement which does

not jeopardize the health or safety of individuals occupying the Premises; or
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7)

(i) Immediately upon the determination by any state or local authority that the failure
to make such repair or replacement could jeopardize the health or safety of individuals

occupying the Premises.

The period between the date of delivery of the termination notice and the effective date of
termination shall be referred to as the “Notice Period”. If the Lease is terminated in
accordance with Subparagraph 6(i), then, during the Notice Period: (a) LESSEE shall be
relieved of any responsibility for the cost of the repair or replacement of major
components; and (b) LESSEE’S obligation to otherwise maintain the Premises in
accordance with the terms of this Lease as well as all other obligations of the LESSEE

hereunder, including the obligation to pay rent, shall continue in full force and effect.

Compliance with State Fire Safety Code; Option to Terminate

In addition to the responsibilities of the LESSEE set forth in paragraph 4 and 6 and
notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph 5, the LESSEE shall comply with the
requirements of the Connecticut Fire Safety Code and shall be responsible for any and all
minor and major work including, but not limited to, renovations and structural alterations
required at any time during the period of this Lease, to bring the leased Premises into
compliance with said Code. The TOWN reserves the right to make reasonable
inspections, of the Premises, upon reasonable notice, to ensure that the appropriate steps
are being taken by the LESSEE to comply with the aforesaid Code. If it is determined by
the TOWN, in its sole discretion, that the necessary work is not done or not being done,
the TOWN shall direct the LESSEE to perform such work. All work shall be done by
appropriately licensed professionals. If the LESSEE fails to comply with such reasonable
directive, the TOWN may, at its option, terminate this Lease immediately or undertake
the necessary work to bring the building “up to code,” in which case the LESSEE agrees
to reimburse the TOWN for any expenses incurred in and as the result of such work
within thirty (30) days of the completion of the work, If the LESSEE fails to reimburse
the TOWN for all expenses incurred within the required thirty (30) day limit, as the case
may be, the TOWN may, at its option, terminate this Lease immediately and proceed in

accordance with the provisions of paragraph 23.
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8)

9)

LESSEE will not permit the parking of any vehicles in any manner which interferes
with the driveways, sidewalks and fire lanes and any other areas desired to be kept clear
by the TOWN,

No Assignment or Subletting
The TOWN acknowledges that the Premises are currently being sublet to The Learning

.

~CsSaugatuck Child Care Services, Inc. and the

Community Day School, Inc.,

Children’s Community Development Center, Inc. (hereinafter “the
Apenctes JAGENCIES™). It is anticipated that the LESSEE and the
ApenetesAGENCIES will be able to resolve among themselves which days and hours the

gymnasium, playing fields and other facilities will be used by each Agency.

Prior to the effectiveness of this Lease, the LESSEE shall provide to the TOWN

originally sipned indemnity and hold harmless agreements from each AGENCY in the

form attached hereto as Exhibit B hereto. as well as the insurance certificate(s) required

thereby. LESSEE shall notify the TOWN immediately if there is any AGENCY no

longer sublets space at the Premises,

The LESSEE may neither sublet the Premises, or any portion thereof, to an entity other
than specified herein, nor may it assign this Lease without the prior written approval of
the TOWN, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. A condition precedent
to the Town’s approving an assignment of the Lease is a review of and adjustment to the

annual rent schedule. (See Schedule A).

Use of Premises

(a) The Premises shall be used only for child care and educational purposes and
fundraising activities in connection therewith. The LESSEE expressly agrees not to use
or permit the Premises to be used for any other purpose without the prior written approval
of the TOWN. It shall not be deemed unreasonable to withhold approval for uses other

than for child care, education and fundraising activities associated therewith.

-6-
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(b) The LESSEE shall have exclusive use of the Premises, subject to such rights of
inspection and use as are reserved to the TOWN in this Lease. The LESSEE shall have
the exclusive use of the parking areas between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m.,
Monday through Friday. The outside playing fields described in Exhibit A attached
hereto and incorporated herein shall be used in common with the TOWN and others to
whom such right may be given, subject to the right of the TOWN to adopt a schedule of
use of the outside play areas by the LESSEE and others. It is understood that, in the
event the TOWN and the LESSEE propose events that would conflict with each other,
the TOWN event is to be accorded priority. The LESSEE may submit to the TOWN a
list of proposed restrictions on use of the play areas by others. Upon approval by the
TOWN, the LESSEE may enforce those restrictions against others who use the play

arcas.

(c) The TOWN reserves the right to utilize the gymnasium and common area for
programs sponsored by TOWN departments or agencies at any time after 6:00 p.m.,
daily, and all day on Saturdays, Sundays and holidays upon reasonable notice to the
LESSEE. In addition, the common area shall be made available to the Registrars of
Voters for voting purposes for any regular or special election from 6:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.
on the day of such election, plus reasonable set-up and breakdown time before and after
any election day, and for any other occasion when it is needed for voting purposes. The
TOWN shall keep a record of expenses attributable to the TOWN’S use of the building

and shall be responsible for paying for these expenses directly.

(d) Where outside groups or agencies wish to use the leased Premises, or any portion
thereof, for any planned event, permission shall be obtained from the TOWN and the
LESSEE and such outside group or agency shall submit evidence of insurance in amounts
satisfactory to the TOWN. The LESSEE shall have no liability for any damage or injuries

sustained by any person or property during the course of, or as the result of, such use.

(e) Except as provided herein, the LESSEE agrees that its use of the leased Premises
shall not interfere with the use of the grounds by the TOWN.

-7-
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10) Quiet Enjoyment
The LESSEE shall peaceably and quietly have, hold and enjoy the leased Premises for
the terms aforesaid in common with others, subject to performance of the covenants of

this Lease in all respects on the part of the LESSEE.

11) Condition of Premises; Alterations and Improvements
The Premises are leased from the TOWN “as is” and as they stand at the time of the
commencement of this Lease and without any representations on the part of the TOWN
or its agents, Except as provided in paragraphs 4, 6, and 7, no improvements, alterations,
additions or changes of a structural nature shall be made to the Premises without the prior
written consent of the TOWN, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. No
playground or playground equipment except for that which exists as of the date of this
Lease may be erected without the prior written permission of the TOWN. All
improvements, alterations, additions or changes shall be made in accordance with all
applicable laws, codes, ordinances and regulations including but not limited to all
applicable zoning regulations. Prior to the commencement of any alteration or
improvement by any contractor, the TOWN will be provided with a certificate of insurance
for such contractor, showing public liability coverage, workers' compensation coverage and
any other coverage reasonably required by the TOWN, which certificate names the TOWN
as an additional insured and provides that the coverage will not be canceled or not renewed

without at least fifteen (15) days advance notice to the TOWN.

12) Compliance with Laws

The LESSEE shall observe and comply with all Federal and State laws, rules and
regulations, including licensing laws, which regulate the operation of LESSEE’S and the
Ageneiess AGENCIES” activities. LESSEE also agrees to observe and comply with all
State and Federal laws and the ordinances, rules and regulations of the TOWN insofar as
the Premises, and the LESSEE’s use thereof, are concerned. LESSEE shall indemnify
and save the TOWN harmless from and against any damage, liability, fines, penalties and
costs imposed upon the TOWN for LESSEE’S or any AgeneysAGENCY'S violation of

or non-compliance with same.




13) Right to Reclaim Premises
The TOWN shall have the right to terminate this Lease and reclaim the Premises for any
municipal purpose. For purposes of this paragraph, the term “municipal purpose” shall
include, but shall not be limited to, reactivation of the Premises as a school within the
Westport School system, use of the Premises for Town or Board of Education
administrative offices, or the sale of the Premises for any purpose to any party. In the
event the TOWN wishes to terminate this Lease and reclaim the Premises, the TOWN
will give the LESSEE notice, in writing, of its intention to do so and the LESSEE shall
vacate the Premises no later than twelve (12) months from the conclusion of the school
year within which the TOWN notifies LESSEE of its intention to reclaim the Premises.
In addition to the foregoing, the TOWN may, at its option, terminate or suspend this
Lease upon twelve (12) months written notice in the event that, through an Act of God or
other casualty beyond the control of the parties, it becomes necessary for the Board of

Education of the Town of Westport to utilize the leased Premises for school purposes.

14) Vacating Premises
The LESSEE will commit no waste, nor suffer the same to be committed on the
Premises, nor injure nor misuse the same. The LESSEE will deliver the Premises at the
expiration of the Lease term, or sooner termination, free of all personal propetty, in as
good condition as they now are in, or as they may be placed by reason of any

improvements, alteration, additions or changes, subject to reasonable use and wear.

15) Option to Purchase
Upon the receipt of a bona fide offer to purchase the Premises which the TOWN is
willing to accept, the TOWN will notify LESSEE of such offer in writing and will grant
to LESSEE the option to purchase the Premises at the same price and upon the same
terms and conditions offered. The option granted to LESSEE by the TOWN hereunder
shall be effective provided notice of the exercise of the option by LESSEE is given
pursuant to paragraph 16 of this Agreement and a contract to purchase the Premises is

delivered in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 16 of this Agreement.




16) Exercise of Option
LESSEE must exercise the option set forth in paragraph 15 by: (1) giving notice in
writing of its intention to exercise the option to the TOWN on the date that is fifteen (15)
calendar days from the date on which LESSEE received written notice from the TOWN
of a bona fide offer to purchase as prescribed in paragraph 15 of this Agreement; and (2)
signing a mutually agreeable contract to purchase the Premises and returning such
contract to the TOWN on the date that is thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which
LESSEE received written notice from the TOWN of a bona fide offer to purchase as
prescribed in paragraph 15. Thereafter, LESSEE shall close the sale of the Premises

within a reasonable period of time.

17) Time is of the Essence: Termination of Option
Time is of the essence with respect to the option set forth in paragraph 15 and all dates set
forth in paragraph 16, and such option shall cease and terminate in the event that it is not
exercised as hereinabove stated. In the event LESSEE fails to effectively exercise the
option in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 16, the option shall cease, expire,
and terminate. In such event, the TOWN shall be free to offer for sale and negotiate with
any third party or entity with respect to the sale of the Premises and convey and/or sell

the Premises to any other third party.

18) Signage
No sign, advertisement or notice shall be affixed to or placed upon any part of the
exterior of the demised Premises by the LESSEE, except in such manner and of such
size, design and color as shall be approved in advance by the Planning and Zoning

Commission,

19) No Liability for Loss or Damage
Except for those periods of time when the TOWN uses the building or grounds and
except for the TOWN’s failure to perform any of its obligations set forth herein, the
TOWN shall not be responsible for the loss or damage to property, or injury to persons,
occurring in or about the demised Premises by reason of any existing or future condition,

defect, manner or thing of said Premises or the property of which the Premises are a part,
-10 -
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or for the acts, omissions or negligence of other persons or subtenants in and about the
Premises The LESSEE shall indemnify and save the TOWN harmless against and from
any final judgments rendered by courts of competent jurisdiction, including attorney’s
fees, by reason of any injury to a person or persons or damages to the property of the
LESSEE or arising out of the use and occupancy of the demised Premises, including
playground equipment erected by the LESSEE or any of the AGENCIES, sidewalks
connecting the demised Premises with the parking lots, and the parking lot and driveways
of the TOWN, provided said injury or damage is not caused by a breach of the TOWN’s
covenants and agreement hereunder. The LESSEE shall also be responsible for and
indemnify the TOWN for any damages resulting from the acts or omissions of its sub-

tenants, if any.

20) Insurance

LESSEE. Fhe-Children’s-Community-Development-Center. TneThe Learaing

hooltres and SECSIne=the AGENCIES shall each secure and

keep in force a-Compte

ce-poheythe following

insurance coverages during the term of this Lease, ensuring the TOWN, its agents,

officers and employees against any and all claims arising from the use of the leased

Premises, (including without limitation the sidewalks connecting the -Premises with

the parking lot, the parking lot-ané. the driveways and the grounds), by the LESSEE,

each-Ageneythe AGENCIES and-/or its or their respeetive-officers, agents, employees

, students, business and/or social guestsri-the-amotat-ot

A. Workers compensation insurance required by law with emplovers Hability Jimits for

at least €

ergthe

amounts of liability for bodily injury by accident of § 500,000 cach accident and

property-damage—with-an-annual-bodily injury by disease of $500.000 including a

waiver of subrogation.

-11-
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13. Commercial eeneral Hability tnsurance policy, including abuse and molestation, with

an edition date of 1986 or later including products and completed operations. Limits

shall be at least: Bodily injury & property damage with an occurrence limit of

$1.000,000; Personal & advertising injury limit of $1.000.000 per occurrence:

General aggregate limit of PAO-MILHONL{$$2,000,000)-DOLLARS including-contractual

liability-coverage~Sueh- (other than products and completed operations): and Products

and completed operations aggregate limit of $2.000,000.

The policy shall naine the TOWN ag an additional insured and include 1SO Form CG

2026 oy equivalent.

¢ Such coverape will be provided on an occurrence basis and will be primary

and shall not contribute in any way to theany insurance or self-insured
retention carried by the Fown—lnsurance-companiesshall-be-licensed-to-do

afnotessthan-AVH-TOWN.

e The policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of the TOWN.,

e Such coverage shall contain a broad form contractual liability endorsement or

wording within the policy form to comply with the hold harmless and

indemnity provision of the contract

e Deductible and self-insured retentions shall be declared and are subject to the

approval ol the TOWN.

(. Umbrella or excess liability policy in the amount of $5.000.000 each occurrence and

$5.000.000 in the ageresate. Such umbrella or excess liability policies of the

LESSEE and each Agency-shall-alse-secure-and-keep-inforce Workers- Compensation

lasurance-inaccordance-with-the laws-ef the State-of Connectictt:AGENCY shall apply to

-12-
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all of the underlying insurance requirements of this Lease. including but not limited to

abuse and molestation coverage.

D. Professional Liability. Professional liability insurance for errors and omissions

arising out of any breach of duty, neglect. error. misstaternent, or omission committed

in the course of their duties. Such policy shall contain limits of liability in the amount

ol $1.000.000 each occurrence and $3.000.000 in the agurepate.

E. Abuse and Molestation. Separate abuse and molestation insurance policy if not

included in commercial general liability insurance. Such policy shall contain limits

of liability in the amount of $1,000,000 each occurrence and $2.000,000 in the

aggrepate.

All liability coverages shall name the TOWN as an additional insured.

Except as provided herein, upon the renewal of this Lease as provided in paragraph 2, the
amount of liability insurance may be reviewed and increased or decreased as is deemed
necessary by the TOWN. It shall be the responsibility of the LESSEE and each
AGENCY to notify each of their carriers of its primary status. Certificates of Insurance
indicating that such policies are in full force and effect shall be delivered to and retained
by the TOWN upon execution of this LEASE; and, such certificates shall be executed by
a licensed representative of the participating insurer(s). Said certificates must name the

TOWN as additional insured, contain the required endorsements, and contain a clause

granting at least thirty (30) days written notice to the TOWN of the intent to effect
cancellation, non-renewal or other material change which may have an adverse effect on
the policies of insurance referred to in the certificate. The premiums shall be paid by the
LESSEE and the AGENCIES.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event the TOWN is notified by its insurance
carrier, prior to the date of renewal of this Lease, that industry standards require an

increase in the liability insurance coverage required pursuant to this paragraph 20, the
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TOWN shall notify LESSEE, in writing, of such increase and the LESSEE and each
AGENCY shall have one (1) year from the date of such notice to deliver to the TOWN a

certificate of insurance evidencing such increased liability insurance.

21) Damage to Premises
It is further agreed that, in case the Premises are damaged by fire or other cause to the
extent which, in the sole discretion of the TOWN, renders the repair or reconstruction
thereof impractical, this Lease shall terminate and LESSEE’s obligation to maintain and
repair shall terminate, Rent shall be paid up to the time of such destruction. However,
the TOWN shall take into consideration the TOWN’s fire insurance policy on the
Premises and shall consult with the LESSEE in determining the practicality of repairing
or reconstructing the Premises, with a view towards effectuating the intent of the Lease.

The termination of this Lease under this paragraph shall not constitute breach of contract.

22) Holding Over
In the event that the LESSEE shall remain in the demised Premises after the expiration of
the term of this Lease and any renewal period without having executed a new written
lease with the TOWN, such holding over shall not constitute a renewal or extension of
this Lease. The TOWN may, at its option, elect to treat the LESSEE as one who had not
removed at the end of its term, and thereupon be entitled to all the remedies against the
LESSEE provided by law in that situation, or the TOWN may elect, at its option, to
construe such holding over a tenancy from month-to-month, subject to all the terms and

conditions of this Lease, except as to duration thereof.

23) Default; Termination
This Lease shall terminate in accordance with the provisions of paragraphs 4, 6 and 7.
Further, if the rent shall remain unpaid thirty (30) days after the same shall become due
and payable as required in paragraph 3, or if the LESSEE fails to comply with any other
term or condition of this Lease and such failure continues for a period of ninety (90) days
after notice thereof has been given to LESSEE, this Lease shall thereupon by virtue of
this express stipulation, at the option of the TOWN, expire and terminate, and the TOWN
may, at any time thereafter, re-enter the Premises, and recover possession thereof in the

-14-




manner prescribed by the statute relating to summary process. The foregoing rights and
remedies are not intended to be exclusive, but are additional to all rights and remedies the

parties would otherwise have by law.

24) No Waiver
No waiver by the TOWN of any violation or breach of condition by the LESSEE shall
constitute or be construed as a waiver of any other violation or breach of condition, nor
shall acceptance of rent after default or lapse of time after breach of condition by the
LESSEE before the TOWN shall exercise its option under paragraph 23 operate to defeat
the right of the TOWN to declare this Lease null and void and to re-enter upon the

demised Premises after the said breach or violation,

25) Costs of Enforcing Lease
The LESSEE agrees to be responsible for and reimburse the TOWN for reasonable
attorney’s fees and disbursements which the TOWN may be obligated to expend in
connection with any breach by the LESSEE of any of the terms, conditions or provisions

of this Lease upon final judgment being rendered by a court of competent jurisdiction.

26) Notices
All notices required under the terms of this Lease must be in writing., Notices from the
LESSEE to the TOWN shall be sent by registered or certified mail or delivered to the
TOWN at the First Seleetpersen’sSelectman’s Office, Town Hall, Westport, Connecticut
06880. Notices from the TOWN to the LESSEE shall be sent by registered or certified
mail to the LESSEE at its corporate office located at 90 Hillspoint Road, Westport,
Connecticut 06880.

All notices shall be effective upon receipt. Notice must be given to the other party at the
address indicated in this paragraph 26 or to such other address designated by a party by
notice. Provided however, the TOWN shall not be required to give notice to more than
one address, and if more than one address is specified, TOWN may choose any one

address of those designated by LESSEE.
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27) Severability

The provisions of this Lease are severable, and if any provision shall be determined to be
invalid or unenforceable, the provision shall be enforced to the extent permitted by law
and, to the extent any provision or portion thereof remains unenforceable or invalid, it
shall be severed from this Lease and the remainder of the Lease shall be valid and

enforced to the fullest extent permitted by the law.

-16 -
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Dated and signed this day of

WITNESS:

200520 .

WITNESS:

Approved as to form:

TOWN OF WESTPORT:

By:

James S. Maipe
First SeleetwomanSelectman

PARENT CHILD CENTER, INC.:

Print Name:
Its President, duly authorized

Approved as to compliance with the
Charter of the Town of Westport:

Grat-ceHy
Eileen Favigne Flug
Assistant Town Attorney

Cronted-on-H202003 0 0-AMGATA-OR R gasei et Child-Conter e Paren-Chikh-Genter-beqs i

Penald-I-MildusGary Conrad
Finance Department
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT)
) SS. Westport , 200520
COUNTY OF FAIRFIELD )

Personally appeared before me Biane-GossFarrellJames S. Marpe, First
SelectwomanSelectman, Signer and Sealer of the foregoing instrument, being duly authorized,
shehe acknowledged the same to be herhis free act and deed, before me.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:

STATE OF CONNECTICUT)
) ss. Westport , 200520
COUNTY OF FAIRFIELD )

Personally appeared before me Stacie-E—Curran; . President, The
Parent Child Center, Inc., Signer and Sealer of the foregoing instrument, being duly authorized,
she acknowledged the same to be her free act and deed, before me.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:




SCHEDULEASCHEDULEA
Annual Rents
YEAR RENT | YEAR RENT
3 22070 VA L O4& 079 ¢ :
2020-2021 $64.726.95 | 50282009 $78.863.50
2021-202 66.345 12 20 {235 ()C
2021-2022 $66.345.12 ) 20292030 $80.835.09
2022-2023 $68.003.75 2030-2031 $82.855.96
2023-2024 $69.703.84 2031-2032 $84.927.36
2005/062024- | $54-500:0071.,446.44 2003442032- | $87.050.55-832.83
2025 - 2033
2006/072025- | $55945:0073.232.60 2044452033~ | $56,749.4989.226.81
2026 - 2034
2007082026- | $523341575.063.41 | _ 254620 $57.68491.457.48
2027 34-2035
18092027 - S 1.940.0( , e
%)27 $52.757.4976,940.00 2016117 §58.63917
2009/10 $531485.07 200748 $60,09731
0Ll $54.052.09 201920 2019-2020 rent is $63,148.24,

Note: $1015,000 of each annual rental amount shall be deposited into the Town’s General Fund.

-19 -

Granted on 2020053030 AMEGEA-OF IS hansesftarent-6 - Center-AngParent-Chitd Center eise-finak 02008 doe- -




EXHIBIT A

QUTSIDE PLAYING FIELDS (TOWN MAINTAINED AREAS)
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HILLSPOINT SCHOOL PROPERTY
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EXHIBIT B

INDEMNITY AND HOLD HARMILESS AGREEMENT
TO BE OBTAINED FROM AGENCIES

221 -
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INDEMNITY AND HOLD HARMLIESS AGREEMENT

This Indemnity and Hold Harmiless Agreement (“Agreement”™) is made this day of
20 by [PRINT NAME OF AGENCY]
("Indemnitor") of [PRINT ADDRESS] for the benefit of the

Town of Westport, a municipality in the State of Connecticut ("Town'").

WHEREAS. Indemnitor is authorized, pursuant to Section 8 of that certain lease between The

Parent Child Center. Inc. and the Town of Westport entitled “The Parent Child Center. Ine. Lease,”

dated as of . 2020, (the “Lease.” a_copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibil

A). 1o sublet a portion of the Town-owned premises at 90 Hillspoint Road, Westport, Connecticut (the

“Premises”):

NOW THEREFORE., in consideration of Tndemnitor’s receipt of said authorization from the Town

Indemnitor aprees as follows:

1. Indemnitor’s authorization by the Town to sublet the Premises is subject to all termination provisions
of the Lease, This Agreement shall survive any such termination of the Lease, and Indemnitor shall
remain bound by the terms of this Agregcment.

2 Indemnitor shall indemmnify. defend and hold harmless the Town and its agents, officers and

employees. to the fullest extent permitted by law, from and against any and all losses, claims,

allegations. actions, awards. costs and expenses (including but not limited to, court costs and

atlorney's fees), judements. subrogations and damages of every kind and character which may arise

out of or result from. in whole or in part, Indemnitor’s use of the Premises. or from the negligent or

willful acts or omissions of the Indeminitor or any of its employees or agents, subcontractors. third

parties invited or authorized by the Indemnitor to enter the Premises, and/or anyone else for whose
acts Indemnitor may be liable, in connection with the Indemnitor’s use of the Premises.

3. Indemnitor shall (i) make no improvements or alterations to the Premises that are not permitted by the

[ease. (i) relinguish the Premises upon expiration ot termination of the Lease, and (iii) use the

Premises in strict compliance with the terms and conditions of the Lease and all policies, procedures

and conditions relating to the use of Town-owned properties. and in accordance with all applicable

laws. rules, reeulations and ordinances of all governinental authorities.

4. Tndemnitor shall safeguard all who come upon the Premises and shall protect against any personal

injurics and property damage resulting from Indemnitor’s vse of the Premises.

-2 -
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5. Indemnitor shall secure and keep in foree the following insurance coveraees during the term of the Lease,

ensuring the Town. its agents, officers, and employees against any and all claims aviging trom the use of
the Premises (includine without limitation the sidewalks connecting the Premises with the parking lot, the
parking lot, the driveways and the grounds). by the Indenwmitor and/or its officers, agents, employees ,
students, business and/or social guests:

a.  Workers compensation insurance required by law with employers liability limits for at
least the amounts of liability for bodily injury by accident of $ 500,000 each accident and
bodily injury by disease of $300.000 including a waiver of subrogation.

b, Commercial peneral Liability insurance policy. including abuse and molestation, with an
edition date of 1986 or later including products and completed operations. Limits shall be
at least; Bodily injury & property damage with an occurrence limit of $1,000,000;

Personal & advertising injury limit of $1.000.000 per occurrence. General aggregate limit

of $2.000,000 (other than products and completed operations); and Products and
completed operations aggrepate limit of $2.000.000.

i. The policy shall name the Town as an additional insured and include ISO Form
(G 2026 or equivalent.

i, Such coverage will be provided on an occurrence basis and will be primary and

shall not contribute in any way to any insurance or sell-insured retention carried

by the Town.

iii. The policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of the Town.

iv. Such coverage shall contain a broad form contractual liability endorsement or

wording within the policy form to comply with the hold harmless and indemnity

provision of the contract

v, Deductible and self-insured retentions shall be declared and are subject to the

approval of the Town.,

¢.  Umbrella or excess liability policy in the amount of $5,000.000 each occurrence and

$5.000.000 in the aggresate. Such umbrella or excess liability policies of the Indemnitor

shall apply to all of the underlying insurance requirements of this Agreement including

but not limited to abuse and molestation coverage.

d. Professional Liability. Professional liability insurance for errors and omissions arising out

of any breach of duty, neglect. error, misstatement, or omission committed in the course of

the duties of the Indemnitor or its agents, officers or employees. Such policy shall contain
limits of liability in the amount of $1.000.000 each occurrence and $3,000,000 in the
aggrepate.

e.  Abuse and Molestation. Separate abuse and molestation insurance policy if not included

in commercial general liability insurance. Such policy shall contain limits of liability in
the amount of $1.000.000 each occurrence and $2,000,000 in the agpregate.
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All Liability coverapes shall name the Town as an additional insured,

Except as provided herein, upon the renewal of the Lease as provided in paragraph 2
thercof. the amounl of liability insurance may be reviewed and increased or decreased as
is deemed necessary by the Town. It shall be the responsibility of the Indemnitor to
notifv each of its carriers of its primary status. Certificates of Insurance indicating that
such policies are in full force and effect shall be delivered to and retained by the Town
upon execution of the Lease; and, such certificates shall be executed by a licensed
representative of the participating insurer(s). Said certificates must name the Town as
additional insured, contain the required endorsements, and contain a clause granting at
least thirty (30) days written notice to the Town of the intent to effect cancellation, non-
renewal or other material change which may have an adverse effect on the policies of
insurance referred to in the certificate, The premiums shall be paid by the Indemnitor.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event the Town is notified by its insurance carrier,
prior (o the date of renewal of the Lease, that industry standards require an increase in the
liability insurance coverage required pursuant to paragraph 20 of the Lease, the Town
shall notify the Parent Child Center, Inc., in writing. of such increase and the Tndemnitor
shall have one (1) vear [rom the date of such notice to deliver to the Town a certificate of
insurance evidencing such increased liability insurance.

6. This Aareement and the Town’s authorization of the Indemnitor to use the Premises shall not be
assioned by Indemnitor without the prior written approval of the Town.,

7. This Agreement supersedes any and all prior agreements and understandings between the Town and

the Indemnitor recarding the subject matter of this Agreement. This Agreement shall be governed and
interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Connecticut. No provision of this Agreement

shall be deemed waived by the Town unless the waiver is in a signed writing. Any provision of this

Agreement that is deemed unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction shall be deemed amended
and construed to have a valid meaning that is the most protective to the Town, and if no such validating

construction is possible shall be severed from this Agreement, and the enforceability of the remaining
provisions shall not be impaired thereby.

8 This Aereement shall be binding on Indemnitor and its heirs, executors, administrators, successors

and assivns and ghall inure to the benefit of the Town of Westport and its agents. emplovees, elected and

appointed olficials. boards, commissions, committees. volunteers, representatives and assigns.

[NAMES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE]
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WITNESS INDEMNITOR

Print Name: Print Name of the Corporation, LLC, or other Entity
Print Address:

By

Signature of Authorized Signatory
Print Name:

Print Title:

STATE OF CONNECTICUT)
) 58! , Comecticut. 20
COUNTY OF )

Personally appeared signer(s) and sealer of the
forepoine instrument, and acknowledged before me the same to be his/her/their free act and deed, and
acknowledeed before me that he or she is authotized to execute this apreement on behalf of the
Indemnitor and to bind the Indemnitor to its terms and that he or she holds the title with the Indemnitor
that is written below his or her name above.

Notary Public

Print Name:

Print Address:

My Commiission Expires:

Commissioner of the Superior Court
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The Parent — Child Center
90 Hillspoint Rd
Westport, CT 06880

¥

The Honorable James Marpe April 10, 2019
The First Selectman

Town Hall

110 Myrtle Ave.

Westport, CT 06380

Dear Mr. James Marpe,

This letter is to notify the Town of Westport that the Parent Child Center (PCC), which consists of A
Child’s Place (ACP), Children’s Community Development Center {CCDC) and The Learning Community
Day School (LCDS), is requesting to renew our lease which will expire on August 31 2020.

Thank you for your kind attention to this request.

Sincerely,

Lauren Karpf
President of the PCC

cc: Eileen Flug
Assistant Town Attorney
cc: Helen Garten
Selectman’s Real Property Committee




Parent Child Center
90 Hillspoint Road
Westport, CT 06880

May 28, 2019

Ms, Helen Garten/Ms. Eileen Flug
Westport Town Hall

110 Myrtle Avenue

Westport, CT 06880

Dear Ms. Garten & Ms. Flug:

| write In response to your email dated April 15, 2019. Below is a brief background of the
Parent Child Center (PCC) as well as the specific information you requested. | have also
enclosed copies of the financial statements for the PCC and the three programs operating in the
building.

By way of background, the PCC is the management agency for the child care and early
education programs that currently occupy the former Hillspoint Elementary School. The PCC is
a private non-profit organization under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The
three early care and education programs - A Child’s Place (ACP), Children’s Community
Development Center (CCDC), and The Learning Community Day School (LCDS) - are also private
nonprofit agencies under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The three programs
providing the services to children and families have all occupied the Hillspoint facility since
September 1980.

Programs Offered

The three schools provide a broad range of full and part time services to families with infants,
toddlers, preschool, and Kindergarten aged children. Families may choose a program operating
from as early as 7:15 in the morning until as late as 6:00 in the evening for two, three or five
days a week. Programs are available ten or twelve months a year. Low-to-moderate income
families can attend the schools through financial assistance programs. Priority is given to
families who are clients of the Town of Westport, Department of Human Services. The
programs are licensed by the State of Connecticut Office of Early Childhood and accredited by
theNational Association for the Education of Young Children Academy of Early Childhood
Program Accreditation.

Demographics
Over 260 students currently utilize the programs at Hillspoint. Approximately 84% of these

familles either reside and/or work in Westport. Those that neither live nor work in Westport
often grew up here and/or have family living here. The programs employ over 100 people,




Lease Arrangement

The current lease has been in effect since 2005. The arrangement allows the Town to own the
building, keep control of the two ball fields, support essential community services that attract
families with young children to Westport, and incur no operating or capital expenses.

Response to Specific Questions:

1.  Recent financial statements from PCC and the three childcare organizations:
SEE ENCLOSED EXHIBIT A.

2. Current profit and loss statement from PCC showing your out of pocket expenditures for
routine malntenance (under $1,000), utilities, sewer fees, etc. associated with the premises:
SEE ENCLOSED EXHIBIT B.

3.  List of capital projects you've completed over the last 5 years (since the lease renewal) or
expect to complete over the next 12 months:

Over the last 5 years, the PCC has upgraded security cameras ($20,000), added film to windows
($6,000), created a nature trail outside ($5,000), paved the parking lot {$15,000 reimbursed
from the Town account), purchased a hot water heater and air handlers ($8,000 reimbursed
from the Town account), updated the kitchen ($15,000), and beautified the landscaping
($20,000).

In addition, ACP completed bathroom renovations and new flooring ($20,000) and upgraded
classrooms, including painting and new flooring ($40,000). CCDC added new closets, updated
the playground, installed new flooring, and made improvements to classrooms ($54,500). LCDS
installed LED energy efficient lighting ($22,000), upgraded classrooms with new counters,
cabinets, and paint ($47,000), and updated its playground ($5,000).

4. Capital improvements expected in the next 10-15 years:

The schools plan to continue with cosmetic renovations to the classrooms and repairs and
upgrades to the playgrounds. The building projects will consist of the replacement of one boiler
and two air handlers, a new roof, and overlay of the parking lots. The schools expect to spend
approximately $300,000 each over the next 15 years.

5.  What percentage of your current student population are Westport children? Has the
percentage changed over the last 5 years?

Overall, approximately 84% of PCC student families reside or work in Westport.

Specifically, approximately 79% of ACP families live or work in Westport. Over the past five
years, the percentage has remained relativey constant. Approximately 83% of CCDC families
live or work in Westport. That number has not changed greatly over the last 5

years. Approximately 85% of the LCDS current student population reside in




Westport/Weston. Next year's student population will consist of approximately 90%
Westport/Weston students. The number has not changed significantly over the past 5
years. Each year, LCDS sends about 45 children to Kindergarten in the Wesport Public Schools.

6.  How do you view the future market for your services, and who are your major
competitors likely to be?

The three schools are in extremely high demand. ACP and CCDC are the only non-profit full day
programs for infants, toddlers, and preschoolers. The other services in town that serve the
same age groups and operate full day programs are Old Hill Children's Day School, Pumpkin
Preschool, Eartplace and the Goddard School (opening this Fall).

ACP offers morning and full-day programs, as well as a summer program for 9 weeks. Itis fully
enrolled in all programs, and the full day program has a walt list in every age group. ACP will
also offer a 5s program as of next year, offering both part-time and full-time options. CCDC
offers exclusively full-day programs, and is also fully enrolled. LCDS has been fully enrolled in all
age groups for the past three years with wait lists, including its Kindergarten program. LCDS is
one of the only accredited Kindergarten programs in Westport. There are very few non-
denominational preschools in Westport, and even fewer who provide what the PCC schools
offer - part-time programs, full-time programs, summer programs, and Kindergarten programs.

Again, please feel free to contact me if we can be of further assistance.

Beft rega;df,

Lauren Karpf
President of the Board of Directors, PCC

cc: Kerryn Griffin, LCDS
Sandy Seres, ACP
Eileen Ward, CCDC




90 HILLSPOINT ROAD
LEASE OF TOWN OWNED PROPERTY TO PARENT CHILD CENTER, INC.

History of the Lease

Since 1980, the Town owned property at 90 Hillspoint Road has been leased to Parent Child
Center, Inc., a nonprofit corporation that serves as management agency for three separate
nonprofit early education and child care programs (A Childs Place, Children’s Community
Development Center and The Learning Community Day School). The 6.9 acre property contains
a former public elementary school building, a playground, two playing fields, access driveways
and parking. The one story school building, designed by modernist architect Victor Lundy, was
completed in 1961 and contains approximately 39,352 square feet of usable space. The property
is located in a residential neighborhood. The eastern (front) portion of the property is zoned
Residence AA; the western (back) portion, where the playing fields are located, is zoned
Residence A.

When the Westport Public Schools abandoned the Hillspoint School, the Town chose to enter
into a rental arrangement that would accomplish two goals: to maintain the property’s use as an
educational facility, which would be harmonious with the residential character of the
surrounding neighborhood, and to provide for future upkeep and maintenance of the town owned
building at no taxpayer expense. These goals explain the choice of tenant and the structure of the
lease, which have remained consistent over the lifetime of the tenancy and are reflected in the
following lease terms:

--The premises shall be used for child care and early childhood education and related
fundraising,

--The Town (through the Parks & Recreation Department) has priority use of the playing fields.

--All operating and capital expenses and improvements are the financial responsibility of the
Tenant.

--To ensure funding for future capital maintenance and improvements, a portion of the Tenant’s
yearly rental payments is deposited in an escrow account owned and administered by the Town.,

The current lease commenced in September 2005. Its term was ten years, with one 5 year
renewal that required the Town’s consent, which was granted in 2015. That renewal expires on
August 31, 2020. The Town wishes to enter into a new lease with Parent Child Center
substantially in the form of the prior lease, with the modifications noted below.



Proposed Lease Terms

Term; Reclamation of the Property for Municipal Use. We are again proposing a 10 year
lease commencing on September 1, 2020 and terminating on August 31, 2030, with a 5 year
renewal option that will require affirmative approval by the Town.

A 10 year term is not atypical for leases of Town owned property to nonprofits. Unlike most of
the Town’s leases, this lease also gives the Town the right to terminate the lease at any time and
reclaim the property for any municipal purpose, broadly defined to include, without limitation,
reactivation of the building as a public school, use of the premises for Town or Board of
Education administrative offices, or sale of the premises for any purpose to any party. If the
Town exercises its right to reclaim the property, the Tenant must vacate within twelve months of
the end of the school year. If the Board of Education needs the premises for school purposes
because of a casualty, the Tenant must vacate within twelve months of receiving written notice.

In connection with this proposed lease renewal, we have considered whether there is any need at
present or in the near future for these premises for any Town or school purposes. We have
determined that, given the location of the premises in a residential neighborhood and the size and
design of the building, the premises are not suitable or desirable for municipal office use. We
have been informed by Board of Education officials that, although at some point in the future the
property could be considered among other available sites for educational use, such as a new
home for an expanded Stepping Stones Preschool program, the Board of Education has no firm
plan at present that would require leaving the property vacant and foregoing rental income.
Further, the termination provision in the lease provides enough flexibility to allow future
planning by the Board of Education,

Rent; Escrow Account. The proposed rent over the lease term is specified in Schedule A to the
lease. For the first year of the lease (2020-21), rent will be $64,726.95, a 2.5% increase over the
prior year, and rent will increase by 2.5% each year thereafter. This is a more rapid escalation
than occurred under the prior lease. $15,000 of each year’s rent will be deposited in the General
Fund. The remainder will be deposited in the Parent Child Center Escrow Fund that existed
under the prior lease.

As noted above, the lease arrangement with Parent Child Center has been crafted to ensure that
all costs associated with the property, whether ordinary maintenance, repairs, replacements or
capital improvements, are the sole financial responsibility of the Tenant. The lease accomplishes
this in two ways. First, “operating expenses”, defined to include utilities, interior alterations,
grounds maintenance (except the playing fields), fence and playground installation and repair,
are the Tenant’s responsibility, to be paid out of its own budget. Second, “major components,”
defined as structural or mechanical repairs or replacements costing in excess of $1500, are paid
for out of the Parent Child Center Escrow Fund, which is funded by the Tenant though rent
payments and is under the ownership and control of the Town.



Recent interior and grounds improvements paid for directly by the Tenant have included security
cameras ($20,000), a kitchen update ($15,000), energy efficient lighting ($22,000), classtoom
upgrades ($140,000), a nature trail ($5000) and landscaping ($20,000). Expenditures classified
as “major components” and paid for out of the escrow fund over the last three years have totaled
$30,156, including repaving the parking lot ($17,150), exterior painting ($1530) and new heating
units ($4481).

As the Town contemplated renewing the lease, we evaluated the 2005 lease’s allocation of rent
payments between the General Fund and the escrow account and the dollar threshold for “major
components.” The Town proposed two adjustments to which the Tenant agreed. The proposed
lease increases the portion of rent that goes into the General Fund from $10,000 to $15,000 and
increases the threshold for “major components” that are paid for out of the escrow fund from
$1000 to $1500.

These changes reflect the fact that the prior lease will end with a substantial positive balance in
the escrow fund ($387,370 as of January 30, 2020). Under the new rent schedule, new deposits
into the escrow fund over the next five years will equal $265,226, which, when added to the
current balance, will fund the escrow in excess of $650,000. The Town estimates that required
major component expenditures during this period (roofing and paving) will cost $500,000.

Playing Fields. Under the lease, the Town retains the right to use the playing fields which are
located at the rear of the property. According to the Parks & Recreation Department, these fields
are actively used during the school year by Westport Baseball in the evening and weekends and
for Parks & Recreation programs on Sunday mornings. The importance of these fields to the
Parks & Recreation Department means that, however the rest of the property is used, the Town
needs to retain ownership as well as access to the fields from Hillspoint Road.

The lease also gives the Town the right to use the gymnasium and common areas of the building
in the evening and weekends as well as on Election Day. To our knowledge, the Town has never
exercised this right, but it remains in the proposed lease.

Insurance. The insurance provisions of the lease have been updated to current Town
requirements.

Public Benefit and Need

Leasing the Hillspoint property to Parent Child Center has long provided valuable and much
needed benefits to the Westport community. The three preschools that use the property currently
serve over 260 children, 84% of whose families live or work in Westport. Low to moderate
income families receive financial support, many though the Westport Department of Human
Services. The preschools provide a broad range of full and part time services to infants, toddlers,



preschool and Kindergarten aged children, including all day and year round programs that are
not available at all other local preschools. Moreover, the demand for preschools remains very
strong in Westport despite recent new entries.

In addition, the improvements that the Tenant has made to the building and property during its
occupancy, at its own expense, benefit the Westport community. The building is old and has an
unusual design that makes it costly to maintain. Parent Child Center has made a substantial
investment in the premises during the last four decades, a burden that otherwise would have
fallen on the Westport taxpayer.

The First Selectman’s Real Property Committee, at the direction of the Board of Finance, has
evaluated whether there are alternative uses for the property, including possible sale to a third
party or rental at a market rate, For the reasons outlined in its attached report, the Committee has
concluded that there are no alternative uses for the property that promise greater public benefits
than the present lease to Parent Child Center.



Report of the First Selectman’s Real Property Committee on 90 Hillspoint

In connection with the proposed renewal of the lease of Town owned property at 90 Hillspoint
Road to Parent Child Center, Inc., the Real Property Committee met on February 10, 2020 to
evaluate the following questions:

o Is the continued lease of the property to Parent Child Center preferable to alternatives,
including sale, demolition or conversion to municipal purposes?
e What is the property’s fair market rental value, and why is lower rent proposed?

After considering all relevant factors, the Committee concluded that the lease to Parent Child
Center offers greater value to the Westport community than alternative dispositions. In view of
the location, size and condition of the building, rental at fair market value is not feasible.

90 Hillspoint is a 6.9 acre property with 385.48 feet of frontage on a town road. It contains a
former elementary school built in 1961, two playing fields, driveways and access roads. The
most recent tax appraisal valued the property at $17,692,900, with improvements valued at
$7,756,900 and land valued at $9,936,000.

The impressive value of the property on paper has caused the Town periodically to assess
whether it should be sold for residential development (the property is located in the Residence A
and Residence AA zones, so commercial development is not feasible). The Town commissioned
a full appraisal in 2000, and an update in'2003. The Committee asked Town Assessor Paul Friia
to review both appraisals. He confirmed that he was satisfied that the conclusions reached by
both appraisals, including the valuations, remain valid in today’s market conditions.

The limiting factor in any sale of the property is the Town’s desire to retain title and access to the
playing fields at the rear of the site, since these fields are actively used by Westport baseball and
the Parks & Recreation Department. This leaves approximately 2 acres, zoned Residence AA,
that can be divided from the rest of the property and sold as two lots for single family houses.
Assessor Friia estimated the potential value of each lot to be roughly $650,000. Taking into
account demolition costs, the best case scenario would result in the Town potentially realizing
$1,200,000 from the sale of the lots, as well as future property tax revenues.

Nevertheless, there are costs associated with this approach that have dissuaded the Town in the
past from considering sale, and these costs continue today. First, although the Board of
Education has no immediate use for the property, it is an ideal school location that may be
needed in the future, possibly as a place for an expanded Stepping Stones preschool program.
Second, Westporters depend on the three preschool programs offered by Parent Child Center;
were they forced to move, it is doubtful they could find another home in Westport. Finally,
Committee members were skeptical that $1,200,000 could actually be realized, given the



inventory of residential properties currently on the market and the large number of regulatory
approvals that would be required to subdivide and develop two residential lots.

It’s worth noting that the lease gives the Tenant an option to match any third party offer to
purchase the property. The Town has offered to sell the property to Parent Child Center, but it
does not have the funds to purchase at the moment. It remains a possibility for the future, if the
schools decide they do not need it.

The Committee also discussed with Assessor Friia the fair market rental value of the property.
Rental options are limited because the property is located in two residence zones, so the potential
tenants must be government, educational or religious institutions. Neither the Town nor the
Board of Education has any need for the premises as office space. Although there is little data
about commercial rentals by educational and religious institutions, Mr. Friaa estimated the fair
market rental value at $12 per square foot. This is obviously in excess of the proposed rent,
which is roughly $2 per square foot over the term of the proposed lease.

Nevertheless, a simple rental comparison ignores the peculiarities of these particular premises.
The old Hillspoint School is an unusually costly building to maintain due to its architect
designed mid-century detailing. It is also very large (over 39,000 square feet) for the average
preschool and is divided into classrooms, making it a difficult space for a religious institution.
Under the lease, the Tenant has and will continue to invest large sums of its own money in the
upkeep and improvement of the structure, including new flooring, lighting and kitchen upgrades.
All improvements are made under the supervision of the Public Works Department, are paid for
by the Tenant and ultimately belong to the Town. It is hard to imagine another tenant
maintaining the building as well as Parent Child Center has. Likewise, there have never been
conflicts between the Tenant’s operations and the Town’s use of the playing fields.

Finally, it is unclear if there are any educational institutions that would even consider renting
Hillspoint and paying full fair market rental. Most local preschools are affiliated with and
occupy space provided by a nonprofit (churches, synagogues, Earthplace). Parent Child Center
is unique in that it is comprised of three separate preschools with sufficient clients to be able to
utilize the building fully on a year round basis.

Given the robust demand for preschool spaces in Westport, and Parent Child Center’s exemplary
record in maintaining a Town owned building, the tangible benefits to Westport from renewing
this lease outweigh any hypothetical alternative dispositions. In the Committee’s view, Parent
Child Center remains the perfect fit for the Hillspoint School.

Helen Garten, Chair, First Selectman’s Real Property Committee

2/10/20



DEPARTMENT OF FIRE SERVICES
Fire Marshals Office (203) 341-5020
Fax (203) 341-5009
Nathaniel Gibbons, Fire Marshal

January 31, 2020

Eileen Flug, Ass’t Town Attorney
110 Myrtle Ave.
Westport CT 06880

Subject: 90 Hillspoint Road Fire Inspection

This office fully inspected the premises on January 9, 2020 with the following results:

A Child’s Place Inspected 1/9/2020 No Violations
The Learning Community Inspected 1/9/2020 No Violations
CDCC Inspected 1/9/2020 No Violations

Respectfully,

.

Viaar- N

Nathaniel Gibbons
Fire Marshal

515 PosT RoAD EAsT, WESTPORT, CT 06880



Date: February 19, 2020

Employee Name: Superintendent Mike Frawley

Facility Name: Hillspoint School

ANNUAL FACILITY INSPECTION

FACILITY EXTERIOR

.~ Good ° Fair Poor - N/A COMMENTS:

Visibility of bullding address?

Condition of exterior lights?

Condition of exits onto public
streets?

Condition of access to the
building for emergency
vehicles?

Condition of the building?

Condition of walls, trim and
railings?

Condition of exterior walls (free
from cracks, deformation,
staining, or other damage?)

Conditlon of exterlor windows
(free from cracks or broken
panes?)

Condition of woodwork?

Condltion of stairs, landings
and handrails?

Condition of chimneys?

Condition of entrance doors (do
they close slowly to avoid finger
hazards)?

VISUAL ROOF INSPECTION

Good

Fair

Poor

N/A

COMMENTS:

Condition of Roof (roof debrls,
structural deformation, physical
damage or evidence of standing
water)?

Slight standing water. Roof patched throughout years. Scheduled for
resurfacing and recoating per manufacture specifications.

Condltion of shingles?

Condition of metal pieces
(corrosion)?

Condltion of the fascia, soffits,
flashing, gutters/drains,
skylights, chimneys/vents, fall
arrest anchors, control zone
access or drains/vents?




ANNUAL BUILDING INSPECTION

PARKING LOTS AND DRIVEWAY Good Falr Poor N/A COMMENTS:

Condition of asphalt? X Asphalt aging - scheduled for replacement in Capital Plan

Condition of concrete? X

Condition of curbs? X

Condition of sidewalks? X

LANDSCAPING Good Falr Poor. N/A COMMENTS:

Is the lawn In good condition? X

Are trees and shrubs in good

condition? X

Are retaining walls in good

condition? X

Are fences in good condition? X

FACILITY INTERIOR Good Fair Poor N/A COMMENTS:

Condltion of walls? X

Condition of celling? X

Condition of floor coverings? X

Condition of doors? X

Condition of windows? X

Condition of trim? X

Condition of woodwork? X

Conditlon of painted surfaces? X

HVAC Good - Fair Poor N/A COMMENTS:
One boller is newer and one boiler is scheduled for replacement in the
Capital Plan. One air handler was replaces 3 years ago and the remaining

Condition of units? X two are scheduled for replacement in the Capital Plan,

Condition of controls? X

Condition of grills? X

Condition of diffusers? X

Condition of boilers? X

Condition of plpes? X

Condition of ducts? X

PLUMBING Good Fair Poor N/A COMMENTS:

Condition of exposed pipes

(leaks, corrosion)? X

Condition of caulking? X

Condition of fixtures? X

Condition of water heaters? X Replaced in 2015.

Condition of water coolers? X

Condition of toilet tanks, toilet

bowls or sinks (cracks or chips)?| X




ANNUAL BUILDING INSPECTION

ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS Good Falr Poor N/A COMMENTS:
Condition of transformers? X

Condition of switchgears? X

Condition of panels? X All panels from 1960s and are in good working condition.
Condition of wiring? X

Condition of outlets? X

LIGHTING ‘ Good Fair Poor: N/A COMMENTS:
Condition of light fixtures? X

Condition of lamps? X

Conditlon of emergency lights? X

Condition of exit signs? X

FIRE AND SAFETY Good . Fair Poor N/A COMMENTS;
Condition of smoke detectors? X

Condition of heat detectors? X

Conditlon of fire extinguishers? X

GENERAL HOUSEKEEPING

Good Fair Poor N/A COMMENTS:

Cleanliness of facility?

[ x

I




Year Replace 2 Boilers
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029 $40,000,00

3 Air
Handlers

$11,000.00

$15,000.00

Hot Water
Heater
Replaced

Roofing

$250,000.00

Ashalt
Paving

$250,000.00

Exterior

Painting  OIl Tank
Removed

Complete
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PARENT CHILD CENTER
IMPROVEMENTS MADE LAST THREE YEARS BY
THREE SCHOOLS

The Learning Community
Room Renovations including

new cabinets, painting,

new plumbing

Lighting Upgrade

Playground improvements/maintenance

Cleaning Service

$85,000

$22,100
$20,000

$50,250

Childrens Community Development Center

Room Renovations including
new cabinets, flooring, painting,
new plumbing

Lighting Upgrade

Playground improvements/maintenance

Cleaning Service

Saugatuck Child Care Services, Inc.

Room Renovations including
new cabinets, flooring, painting,
new plumbing, front entrance

Playground improvements/Maintenance

Cleaning Service

Parent Child Center, Inc

New Kitchen
Door
New Fence

Landscape Upgrade

$75,000

$10,000 ?

$25,000

$48,800

$108,000

$23,000

$60,000

$20,000
$5,000
$8,200

$6,000



ORG

40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151

40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151

40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151

40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151
40370151

YR/PR
17/3
17/ 4
17/5
17/6
17/7
17/8
17/9
17/10
17/11
17/12
18/1
18/ 2

18/3
18/ 4
18/5
18/6
18/7
18/8
18/9
18/10
18/11
18/12
19/1
19/2

19/3
19/ 4
19/5
19/6
19/7
19/8
19/9
19/10
19/11
19/12
20/1
20/1

20/3
20/ 4
20/5
20/ 6
20/7
20/ 8

LEASE REVENUES FOR PAST 3 YEARS -- 90 HILLSPOINT -- SEPT 2016 TO FEB 2020

JNL
102
62
60
17
17
180
24
50
108
11
311
21

44
56
99
140
120
48
39
54
283
37
138
95

153
76
66
68
25
51
83
41
66
235
171
619

85
43
81
49
19
21

EFF DATE
09/08/16
10/05/16
11/03/16
12/01/16
01/03/17
02/13/17
03/02/17
04/05/17
05/05/17
06/01/17
07/20/17
08/01/17

09/05/17
10/04/17
11/06/17
12/11/17
01/11/18
02/02/18
03/02/18
04/04/18
05/17/18
06/04/18
07/09/18
08/06/18

09/11/18
10/04/18
11/05/18
12/06/18
01/02/19
02/04/19
03/07/19
04/02/19
05/03/19
06/14/19
07/09/19
07/29/19

09/06/19
10/02/19
11/06/19
12/04/19
01/02/20
02/03/20

SRC
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR

GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR

GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR

GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR
GCR

REF1
PARENT
105REN
PARENT
PCHILD
PARENT
PARENT
PCHILD
PARENT
PCHILD
PCHILD
RENT
RENT

PARENT
PCHILD
PCHILD
PCHILD
PCHILD
PCHILD
PCHILD
PCHILD
PCHILD
PCHILD
PCHILD
PCHILD

PCHILD
PCHILD
PCHILD
PCHILD
CHILD

PCHILD
PCHILD
PCHILD
PCHILD
PCHILD
CHILD

CHILD

CHILD
CHILD
PCHILD
CHILD
CHILD
CHILD

COMMENT

PARENTCHILD RECPT 9/8/16
10/5/16 OCT RENT
PARENTCHILD RENT NOV 2016
PARENTCHILD DEC2016 RENT
PARENT CHILD CENTER JAN 2017
PARENTCHILD CENTER FEB 2017
PARENT CHILD MARCH 2017
RENT APRIL 2017

MAY 2017

JUNE 2017 RENT

RECLASS JULY2017 RENTCK JE #4
AUG 2017 RENT

September 2016 August 2017

PARENT CHILD SEPT 2017

RENT RECPTS OCT 2017

NOV 2017 RECPT

PARENT CHILD RENT DEC 2017
JAN 2018 RENT

PARENT CHILD RENT FEB 2018
PARENT CHILD MARCH 2018 RENT
APRIL 2018 RENT

MAY 2018 RENT RECPT

JUNE 2018 RENT

JULY 2018 RENT RECPT

PCHILD CENTER AUG 2018 RECPT
September 2017 August 2018

SEPT 2018 RECPT

RECPTS OCT 2018

NOV 2018 RECPT

DEC 2018 RENT RECPT
JAN 2019 RECPT

FEB 2019 RENT RECPT
RENT RECPT MARCH 2019
APRIL 2019 RECPT
RECPTS APRIL 2019

JUNE 2019 RENT RECPT
RENT JULY 2019 RECPT
AUG 2019 RECPT
September 2018 August 2019

SEPT 2019 RECPT

OCT 2019 RECPT

PARENT CHILD CENTER RENT
DEC 2019 RECPT CK

JAN 2020 RENT RECPT CK

FEB 2020 RENT RECPT
September 2019 February 2020

JOURNAL AMOUNT
4,886.51
4,886.51
4,886.51
4,886.51
4,886.51
4,886.51
4,886.51
4,886.51
4,886.51
4,886.51
4,886.51
4,886.51

58,638.12

5,008.11
5,008.11
5,008.11
5,008.11
5,008.11
5,008.11
5,008.11
5,008.11
5,008.11
5,008.11
5,008.11
5,008.11

60,097.32

5,133.35
5,133.35
5,133.35
5,133.35
5,133.35
5,133.35
5,133.35
5,133.35
5,133.35
5,133.35
5,133.35
5,133.35

61,600.20

5262.35
5262.35
5262.35
5262.35
5262.35
5262.35

31,574.10



MEMORANDUM

Date: February 13, 2020

To:  Members of the Board of Finance

CC:  James S. Marpe, First Selectman

From: Eileen Lavigne Flug, Assistant Town Attorney

Re: Compliance Statement: Lease between the Town of Westport and the Parent Child Center, Inc.
(the “Lease™)

I have reviewed the terms of the above-referenced Lease and its requirements regarding rent
payments, use, maintenance and repairs, signage, and insurance obligations. Ihave confirmed with
the Finance Department that they have had no trouble collecting the rent for the premises. I have
confirmed with the Public Works Department that to the best of their knowledge the tenant is in
compliance with the use, repair and maintenance, and signage obligations of the Lease. My office has
received insurance certificates from the tenant and each subtenant that meet the requirements of the
Lease.
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THE PARENT CHILD CENTER, INC.
WESTPORT, CONNECTICUT
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CERTTFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
& BUSINESS ADVISORS
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THE PARENT CHILD CENTER, INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AUGUST 31, 2019

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 15341
Prepaid expenses 5,850
CURRENT ASSETS 21,191
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Furniture and fixtures 68,851
Leasehold improvements 252,554
321,405
Less: accumulated depreciation 295,314
26,091
$ 47,282
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 2,083
CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,083
NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions 45,199
Total net assets 45,199
s 41082

See independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements.

APICELLA, TESTA & COMPANY, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS -5-
& BUSINESS ADVISORS




THE PARENT CHILD CENTER, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2019

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Revenue

Rental income $ 230,801
Fundraising events 4,765
235,566

Expenses:
Program 220,646
General and administrative 6,072
Fundraising 600
Total Expenses 227,318
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 8,248
Net assets at beginning of year 36,951
NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR § 45,199

See independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements.

APICELLA, TESTA & COMPANY, P.C. -6-

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
& BUSINESS ADVISORS




THE PARENT CHILD CENTER, INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets without donor restrictions $ 8,248
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 6,008
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable 17,150
Prepaid expenses (5,850)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 2,083
Bank overdraft (1,057)
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 26,582

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipment (11,241)

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (11,241)

NET INCREASE IN CASH 15,341

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR § 15,341

See independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements.

APICELLA, TESTA & COMPANY, PC.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
& BUSINESS ADVISORS
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THE PARENT CHILD CENTER, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2019

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ACTIVITIES
The Parent Child Center, Inc. (the “Organization”) is a non-profit entity, which provides
and maintains facilities for a cooperative day care, preschool, and primary education
center for children, regardless of race, creed, color, or sex.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting and accordingly reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other
liabilities.

Accounting Period

The financial statements cover the fiscal year of the Organization for federal income tax
purposes, which runs from September | through August 31.

Expense Ailocations

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the statement of activities. The statement of functional expenses
presents the natural classification of detail of expenses by function. While directly
identifiable expenses are charged to the specific programs and supporting services for
which they incurred, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting
services benefited. Management and general expenses include those expenses that are not
directly identifiable with any specific function, but provide for the overall support and
direction of the organization.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all liquid debt
instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Property and Eguipment

Acquisitions of property and equipment are recorded on the Statement of Financial
Position at cost less accumulated depreciation to reflect the Organization’s net investment
in property and equipment. Depreciation on furniture and equipment is provided for over
an estimated useful life of five to ten years on a straight-line basis. Depreciation on
leasehold improvements is provided for over an estimated useful life of 5 to 39 years on a
straight-line basis. Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred.

See independent accountant’s review report.

APICELLA, TESTA & COMPANY, P.C. -8-

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
& BUSINESS ADVISORS




THE PARENT CHILD CENTER, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
AUGUST 31,2019

NOTE 2- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

Net Asset Classes

The Organization prepares its financial statements using guidelines established under
FASB Accounting Standards Codification 958 (2016-14); the accounting standard
requires that a non-profit organization provide information regarding the net assets of the
organization based on the existence or absence of donor imposed restrictions. The types
of restrictions are described as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to donor (or certain
grantor) restrictions.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets subject to donor- (or certain grantor-} imposed restrictions, Some donor-
imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the
passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed
restrictions are perpetual in nature, whete the donor stipulates that resources be
maintained in perpetuity. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or a purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the
statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. The organization does
not have any net assets with donor restrictions.

Income Taxes

The Organization is a non-profit organization that is exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and is classified by the Internal Revenue Service as
other than a private foundation. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been made in
the accompanying financial statements. The Organization recognizes the effect of income tax
positions only if those positions are more likely than not to be sustained. Management
believes that the Organization has no tax positions that would require financial statement
recognition or disclosure. The Organization's informational tax returns for fiscal years ending
August 31, 2016 and after are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service and the
State of Connecticut, generally for three years from the date they were filed.

See independent accountant’s review report.

APICELLA, TESTA & COMPANY, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
& BUSINESS ADVISORS




THE PARENT CHILD CENTER, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
AUGUST 31, 2019

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED
Donated Services

No amounts have been reflected in the statements for donated services in as much as no objective
basis is available to measure the value of such services; however, a number of members have
donated their time in the Organization's program services.

Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 22, 2019, the date the financial
statements were avaifable to be issued.

NOTE 3 - LEASED FACILITY

The Organization conducts its operations from a leased facility. The lease was entered into with
the Town of Westport on September 1, 2015 and will terminate on August 31, 2020. Rent
expense for the year ended August 31, 2019 amounted to $61,600.

NOTE 4 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The three nonprofit companies with which the Organization receives their revenue from are
related parties. This Organization shares certain members of its board of directors with those
from the related companies.

See independent accountant's review report.

APICELLA, TESTA & COMPANY, P.C. -10-
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THE PARENT CHILD CENTER, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
AUGUST 31, 2019

NOTE 5 - CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains its cash accounts in commercial banks. The balances are insured by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) for up to $250,000 per bank. As of August 31,
2019, the Organization's balances are below the FDIC limit.

The Organization leases its facilities to three nonprofit organizations, their only customers. These
customers make up all of the Organization's revenue.

NOTE 6 - LIQUIDITY

The Organization has $15,341 of financial assets available within one year of the statement of
financial position date to meet cash needs for general expenditure. Financial assets comprise of
cash, cash equivalents and accounts receivable.

See independent accountant's review report.

APICELLA, TESTA & COMPANY, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 11
& BUSINESS ADVISORS - -
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THE PARENT CHILD CENTER, INC.
SCHEDULE I - DETAILS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2019

Program General and
Services Fundraising  Administrative Total
Utilities $ 65,182 $ - $ - § 65,182
Rent 61,600 - - 61,600
Maintenance - grounds 36,075 - - 36,075
Maintenance - other 13,763 - - 13,763
Trash removal 12,888 - - 12,888
Repairs 10,239 - - 10,239
Snow removal 8,813 - - 8,813
Depreciation 6,008 - - 6,008
Bookkeeping - - 4,800 4,800
Sewer assessment 4,197 - - 4,197
Insurance 1,531 - - 1,531
Office expense - 600 492 1,092
Professional fees - - 780 780
Outside services 350 - - 350
§ 220,646 $ 600 3 6,072 $ 227318

See independent accountant's review report.

APICELLA, TESTA & COMPANY, P.C. S12-
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Independent Accountant’s Review Report

To the Board of Directors of
Children's Community Development Center, Inc.
Westport, Connecticut

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Children's Community Development Center,
Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of August 31,2019, and
the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to management’s financial
data and making inquiries of management. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective
of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Accountant’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for
Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the
AICPA. Those standards require us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting
whether we are aware of any material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them
to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We
believe that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.

Accountant’s Conclusion

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the
accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.



Summarized Comparative Information

We previously reviewed Children's Community Development Center, Inc.’s August 31, 2018 financial
statements and in our report dated November 1, 2018, stated that based on our procedures, we were not aware
of any material modifications that should be made to the August 31, 2018 financial statements in order for
them to be in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We
are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the summarized comparative information
presented herein as of and for the year ended August 31, 2018, for it to be consistent with the reviewed
financial statements which it has been derived.

Rtght Rollers Skeppard CPAS, LLD

Knight Rolleri Sheppard CPAS, LLP
Fairfield, Connecticut
October 31, 2019



Children's Community Development Center, Inc.
Statement of Financial Position

August 31, 2019

(With comparative totals for 2018)

Without Donor With Donor  August 31, August 31,
Restrictions Restrictions 2019 2018
ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 270,633 $ - $ 270,633 $ 235,246
Tuition and miscellaneous receivables 6,855 - 6,855 6,834
Prepaid assets 15,589 - 15,589 13,113
Total current assets 293,077 - 293,077 255,193
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash - 31,820 31,820 27,600
Property and equipment, net 101,772 - 101,772 113,488
Total noncurrent assets 101,772 31,820 133,592 141,088
Total assets $ 394849 $§ 31,820 § 426,669 $ 396,281
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ - 3 - 3 - $ 5720
Installment loan payable 18,769 - 18,769 11,604
Deferred tuition and fees revenue 146,608 - 146,608 124,435
Other accrued liabilities 145 - 145 1,805
Total current liabilities 165,522 - 165,522 143,564
Net assets:
Without donor restrictions:
Designated - endowment scholarships 30,072 - 30,072 39,295
Designated - teacher education - - - 4,000
Designated - direct aid emerg fund 24,947 24,947 8916
Designaled - program improvements 18,120 - 18,120 -
Undesignated 156,188 - 156,188 172,906
With donor restrictions:
Purpose Restriction - 7,120 7,120 2,900
Perpetual in nature - 24,700 24,700 24,700
Total net assets 229,327 31,820 261,147 252,717
Total liabilities and net assets $ 394849 $ 31,820 $ 426,669 $ 396,281

See independent accountant's review report and notes to financial statements.
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Children's Community Development Center, Inc.
Statement of Activities

Revenues, gains and other
support:
Tuition and fees
United Way support
Contributions
Interest income
Special events
Miscellaneous

Net asset released from restriction:
Satisfaction of program restriction
Total revenues, gains and
other support
Expenses and losses:
Program services
Management and general
Fundraising
Total expenses and losses
Change in net assets from operations

Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

See independent accountant's review report and notes to financial statements.

For the Year Ended August 31, 2019
(With comparative totals for 2018)

Without Donor  With Donor August 31, August 31,
Restrictions Restrictions 2019 2018

$ 1,539,777 $ - $ 1,539,777 $ 1,519,625

2,297 10,000 12,297 11,060

16,478 4,220 20,698 22,080

918 - 918 670

51,312 16,520 67,832 65,697

2,102 - 2,102 2,679

26,520 (26,520) - -

1,639,404 4,220 1,643,624 1,621,811

1,494,731 - 1,494,731 1,451,248

107,017 - 107,017 96,581

33,446 - 33,446 40,794

1,635,194 - 1,635,194 1,588,623

4,210 4,220 8,430 33,188

225,117 27,600 252,717 219,529

$ 229,327 $ 31,820 $ 261,147 $ 252,717
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Children's Community Development Center, Inc.

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended August 31, 2019
(With comparative totals for 2018)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
(Increase) decrease in tuition and miscellaneous receivables
Increase in restricted cash
(Increase) decrease in prepaid assets
Increase in accounts payable
Increase in deferred tuition and fees
Increase (decrease) in other accrued liabilities
Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net principal payments on installment note payable

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, September 1

Cash and cash equivalents, August 31

August 31, August 31,
2019 2018
$ 8,430 $ 33,188
30,541 34,334
20 8,957
(4,220) (2,900)
(2,476) (2,429)
(5,720) 5,101
22,173 (18,222)
(1,660) (5,703)
38,617 19,138
47,047 52,326
(18,825) (22,457)
(18,825) (22,457)
7,165 9,719)
7,165 9,719)
35,387 20,150
235,246 215,096
$ 270,633 $ 235,246

See independent accountant's review report and notes to financial statements.
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Salary
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes
Occupancy
Supplies and office
Professional and nurse fees
Scholarships
Fundraising
Insurance
Meetings and conferences
Telephone
Miscellaneous
Advertising

Total expenses before

depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization

Total expenses

Children's Community Development Center, Inc.
Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended August 31,2019
(With comparative totals for 2018)

Program Management August 31, August 31,
Services and General Fundraising 2019 2018

$ 997,316 $ 50,270 3 4,878 $1,052,464 $ 1,047,802

151,169 7,620 739 159,528 137,057

84,640 4,266 414 89,320 88,742

82,325 2,552 - 84,877 82,802

70,917 3,575 347 74,839 65,882

- 36,656 - 36,656 27,595

35,743 - - 35,743 32,830

- - 27,004 27,004 34,495

16,180 502 - 16,682 17,953

13,774 - - 13,774 5,403

5,646 285 28 5,959 6,078

5,376 271 26 5,673 4,336

2,022 102 10 2,134 3,314

1,465,108 106,099 33,446 1,604,653 1,554,289

29,623 918 - 30,541 34,334

$ 1,494,731 3 107,017 $ 33,446 $1,635,194 $ 1,588,623

See independent accountant's review report and notes to financial statements.
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Children's Community Development Center, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
August 31,2019
(See Independent Accountant’s Review Report)

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

The Children's Community Development Center, Inc. (CCDC) is a non-profit, educational childcare center
located in Westport, Connecticut. It serves families with children ages 6 weeks through 5 years old.
Professionals in early childhood care and education established it in 1979. The programs offer enrichment
and support to parents and their children.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Prior Year Summarized Financial Information

The accompanying financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in
total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).
Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with our reviewed financial statements for the
year ended August 31, 2019, from which the summarized information was derived.

Basis of Accounting and Presentation
The financial statements of CCDC have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. Accordingly, the accounts

of CCDC are reported by net asset category. Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the
existence or absence of donor or grantor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are
classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions — Net assets available for use in general operations and not
subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions — Net assets subject to donor (or certain grantor) imposed
restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met
by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are
perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-
imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has
elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Cash and cash equivalents - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the CCDC considers all highly
liquid debt instruments purchased with maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. CCDC
maintains its cash accounts at various financial institutions across the State of Connecticut. Accounts are
guaranteed by the FDIC up to $250,000 per financial institution. As of August 31, 2019, CCDC had no
uninsured cash balances. CCDC has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not
exposed to any significant risk in maintaining accounts with the financial institutions.

Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures i.e. functional expense allocations, depreciable lives, etc... Accordingly, actual results could differ
from those estimates.



Children's Community Development Center, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
August 31, 2019
(See Independent Accountant’s Review Report)

Tuition and miscellaneous receivables — Accounts receivables arising from tuition program revenues are
recorded at cost. Allowances for uncollectable accounts are reserved based upon historical write-ofTs.
Accounts receivables are ultimately written off once management has exhausted all means of collection. As of
August 31,2019 CCDC management does not believe a reserve against uncollectable accounts is warranted.

Contributions policy - CCDC reports gifts of cash and other assets as restricted support if they are received
with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated asset. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when
a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, restricted net assets are reclassified to
net assets without restrictions and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from
restrictions.

Property and equipment - Property and equipment are recorded at cost at date of acquisition or at estimated
fair market value at date of donation. Expenditures for property and equipment in excess of $500 are
capitalized.

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years for program
equipment and 5 years for computers. Leasehold improvements are being amortized over the remaining term
of the related lease or its useful life (Note 4).

Contributed services - During the year ended August 31, 2019, the value of contributed services meeting the
requirements for recognition in the financial statements was not material and has not been recorded. In
addition, many individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist CCDC with their
programs. CCDC receives more than 1,200 volunteer hours per year.

Income taxes - CCDC is a not-for-profit organization that is exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. CCDC'’s information returns from August 31, 2016 through 2018 are
subject to examination by the appropriate taxing jurisdictions.

Deferred tuition and fees - Tuition and fees are recognized as revenue within the fiscal year in which the
programs are conducted. Amounts received in advance of the program year are deferred until the next fiscal

year.

Functional expenses - Functional expenses have been allocated between program services and
supporting services based upon an analysis of personnel time and space utilized for the related activities.

Concentrations — The majority of families utilizing the services of CCDC live within Westport, Connecticut
and the immediate surrounding communities.



Children's Community Development Center, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
August 31, 2019
(See Independent Accountant’s Review Report)

NOTE 3 — LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or restrictions limiting their use,
within one year of the statement of financial position date, comprise the following:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 270,633
Tution receivable 6,855
$ 277,488

The endowment fund consists of donor restricted endowment and funds designated for scholarships,
teacher education and staff child care discount. The income earned from this endowment is available for
these purposes.

CCDC maintains liquidity through monthly cash flow from tuition billings, as well as donor
contributions, special event revenues and United Way support.

NOTE 4 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consist of the following:

Program equipment $ 110,039
Computer and office equipment 23,635
Leasehold improvements 473,414
607,088

Accumulated depreciation (505,316)
$ 101,772

NOTE S — BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

Net assets available for a specific purpose for the year ended August 31, 2019 and were in held in cash
accounts are as follows:

Beginning Board Ending

Balance Restricted Used Balance
Endowment - scholarships $ 39,295 $ (9,223) §$ 30,072
Teacher education 4,000 4,000 (8,000) -
Direct aid emergency fund - 24,947 - 24,947
Program improvements 8,916 19,875 (10,671) 18,120

$ 52,211 $ 48,822 $ 27,894) § 73,139




Children's Community Development Center, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
August 31,2019
(See Independent Accountant’s Review Report)
NOTE 6 —NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for the following purposes:

Subject to expenditure for specified purpose:

Emergency fund $ 6,150
Art program 970
Endowments subject to appropriation:
Endowment for scholarships 14,000
Endowment for child care teacher
discounts 5,700
Endowment for teacher education 5,000
$ 31820

No assets were release from restriction during 2018.
NOTE 7 - LEASE COMMITMENT AND RELATED PARTY

CCDC leases space from The Parent Child Center, Inc. (PCC) through an informal lease arrangement. The
intention of the parties is to continue this lease arrangement into the foreseeable future. CCDC is represented
on PCC's board of directors. Rent expense for 2019 was $61,600.

Effective September 1, 2005, PCC executed a lease agreement with the Town of Westport for the facility,
which CCDC occupies. The lease agreement between PCC and the Town of Westport is through August 2015
with a renewal option for an additional five years. The payment schedule to PCC under their informal lease
arrangement, which includes utility reimbursement, is as follows:

For the year ending August 31,
2020 § 63,148
2021 -
2022 -
2023 -
2024 -
Thereafter -
Total $ 63,148

NOTE 8 — INSTALLMENT LOAN PAYABLE

CCDC maintains a credit card facility to purchase items from programs used on a regular basis. The balance
in the account is paid in full each month and CCDC does not carry a balance on the credit card.
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Children's Community Development Center, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
August 31, 2019
(See Independent Accountant’s Review Report)

NOTE 9 - PENSION PLAN

Effective January 1, 1995, CCDC adopted a self directed 403(b) salary reduction plan. All employees are
eligible to participate, and their contributions are immediately vested. CCDC contributes to the plan at various
rates based upon length of employment. CCDC contributed $41,080 to the plan for the year ended August 31,
2019.

NOTE 10 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
In accordance with FASB Accounting Standards Codification 855, Subsequent Events, CCDC has evaluated
subsequent events to the Statement of Financial Position date of August 31, 2019 through October 31, 2019,

which is the date the financial statements were issued. Management has determined that there are no
subsequent events that require disclosure.
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LEARNING COMMUNITY, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS
Aupgust 31,
019 2018
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents, interest bearing of $358,902 and
$105,095 as of August 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively $ 675611 § 566,281
Prepaid expenses 55,822 52,554
CURRENT ASSETS 731,433 618,835
INVESTMENTS 738,896 683,737
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Furniture and equipment 104,982 96,928
Leasehold improvements 502,123 469,639
607,105 566,567
Less accumulated depreciation 336,234 302,570
270,871 263,997
$1,741,200 $ 1,566,569
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 5200 § 11,381
Deferred revenue 934,386 817,815
Current Portion of long term debt 6,034 6.034
CURRENT LIABILITIES 945,620 835,230
LONG-TERM DEBT, less current portion 4,525 10,559
NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions 791,055 720,780
Total net assets 791,055 720,780

$ 1,741,200 $ 1,566,569

See independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements.

APICELLA, TESTA & COMPANY, P.C.
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LEARNING COMMUNITY, INC.
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

Years Ended August 31,
2019 208
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Revenue
Tuition $ 1,149,211 § 1,094,514
Fundraising events 99,869 74,555
Summer program 58,105 50,720
Extended day 46,508 49,196
Supply fees 24,760 25,750
Application fees 20,250 20,900
Activity Fee 7,600 7,725
Contributions and grants 1,420 500
Miscellaneous income 176 1,099
Total Revenue and Support 1,407,899 1,324,959
Expenses:
Program 1,141,712 1,069,108
General and administrative 171,527 165,874
Fundraising 41,500 35,470

Total Expenses 1,354,739 1,270,452

Income From Operations 53,160 54,507

Other income (loss):
Unrealized investment gain (loss) (5,703) 22,866
Investment income 22,818 19,186
Realized gain on sale of investments - 993
Total Other Income 17,115 43,045
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 70,275 97,552
Net assets at beginning of year 720,780 623,228

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR § 791,055 § 720,780

See independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements.

APICELLA, TESTA & COMPANY, P.C.
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LEARNING COMMUNITY, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets without donor restrictions
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Unrealized investment (gain) loss
Realized (gain) loss on sale of investments
(Increase) decrease in assets:

Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable

Deferred revenue

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchases of investments

Years Ended August 31,
2019 2018

$ 70,275 § 97,552
35,028 31,399
5,703 (22,866)
- (993)
(3,268) (10,603)
(6,181) 3,601
116,571 (19,570)
218,128 78,520
(41,903) (64,469)

- 123,690
(60,861)  (183,983)

Net Cash Used In [avesting Activities (102,764) _ (124,762}

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long-term debt
Payments on long-term debt

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Financing Activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

- 22,124
(6,034) (5,531)
(6,034) 16,593

109,330 (29,649)

566.281 595,930

566,281

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR § 675,611 )

See independent accountant's review report and accompanying nofes to financial statements.

APICELLA, TESTA & COMPANY, I.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
& BUSINESS ADVISORS
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LEARNING COMMUNITY, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2019 AND 2018
NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ACTIVITIES
Learning Community, Inc. (the “Organization”) is a non-profit, non-denominational
school, which provides an alternative educational opportunity for children throughout
Fairfield County. The school covers pre-school to kindergarten.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting and accordingly reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other
liabilities.

Accounting Period

The financial statements cover the fiscal year of the Organization for federal income tax
purposes, which runs from September 1 through August 31.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers ali highly-ligquid
debt instruments purchased with a maturity of six months or less to be cash equivalents.

Investments

Investment purchases are recorded at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the date of
donation. Thercafter, investments are reported at their fair values in the statements of
financial position. Investment return loss) is reported in the statements of activities based
on the existence or absence of donor imposed restrictions and consists of interest and
dividend income, realized and unrealized capital gains and losses, less external and direct
internal investment expenses. See Note 4 for additional details.

Property and Equipment

Acquisitions of property and equipment are recorded on the Statement of Financial
Position at cost less accumulated depreciation to reflect the Organization’s net investment
in property and equipment. Depreciation on furniture and equipment is provided for over
an estimated useful life of five to ten years on a straight-line basis. Depreciation on
leasehold improvements is provided for over an estimated useful life of 5 to 39 years on a
straight-line basis. Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred.

See independent accountant’s review report.

APICELLA, TESTA & COMPANY, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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LEARNING COMMUNITY, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
AUGUST 31,2019 AND 2018

NOTE2- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

Deferred Revenue

The amount reported as deferred revenue represents tuition payments and fees received in
advance of the school year.

Net Asset Classes

The Organization prepares its financial statements using guidelines established under
FASB Accounting Standards Codification 958 (2016-14); the accounting standard
requires that a non-profit organization provide information regarding the net assets of the
organization based on the existence or absence of donor imposed restrictions. The types
of restrictions are described as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to donor (or certain
grantor) restrictions.

Net Assets with Donor Resfrictions

Net assets subject to donor- (or certain grantor-) imposed restrictions. Some donor-
imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the
passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed
restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be
maintained in perpetuity. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or a purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the
statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. The organization does
not have any net assets with donor restrictions.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Advertising costs for
the years ended August 31, 2019 and 2018 totaled $252 and $698, respectively.

Donated Services

No amounts have been reflected in in statements for donated services in as much as no
objective basis is available to measure the value of such services; however, a numbet of
members have donated their time in the Organization’s program services.

See independent accountant’s review report.

APICELLA, TESTA & COMPANY, P.C. -9 -
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LEARNING COMMUNITY, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
AUGUST 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED
Income Taxes

The Organization is a non-profit organization that is exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and is classified by the Internal Revenue Service as other
than a private foundation. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been made in the
accompanying financial statements. The Organization recognizes the effect of income tax
positions only if those positions are more likely than not to be sustained. Management believes
that the Organization has no tax positions that would require financial statement recognition or
disclosure. The Organization's informational tax returns for fiscal years ending August 31, 2016
and after are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service, generally for three years
from the date they were filed.

Expense Allocations

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the statement of activities. The statement of functional expenses presents the
natural classification of detail of expenses by function. While directly identifiable expenses are
charged to the specific programs and supporting services for which they incurred, certain costs
have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited. Management and
general expenses include those expenses that are not directly identifiable with any specific
function, but provide for the overall support and direction of the organization.

Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2018 balances to conform to the 2019
presentation,

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 22, 2019, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

See independent accountant's review report.

APICELLA, TESTA & COMPANY, P.C. -10-
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LEARNING COMMUNITY, INC.,
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
AUGUST 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:

August 31,
2019 2018
Checking $316,709 § 461,186
Savings 358,902 105,095

$ 675,611 § 566,281

NOTE 4 - INVESTMENTS

Investments are stated at fair value and consist of various mutual funds as follows:

August 31,
2019 2018

Cost Market Cost Market
American Euro Pacific $ 11,597 § 10,407 $ 11,319 $ 10,546
BlackRock Global Dividend Portfolio 17,090 16,455 16,102 16,080
BlackRock Multi Asset 33,899 33,231 32,251 31,374
BlackRock Global Allocation Fund 18,872 18,565 18,872 19,512
Fidelity Advisor Floating Fund 37,235 36,455 35,437 35,328
Fidelity Advisor Strategic Fund 34,905 35,261 34,518 33,912
Goldman Sachs ETF Trust 26,359 28,535 8,461 10,281
IShares Core S&P Mid-Cap 25,806 63,037 25,806 68,457
IShares TR Russell 2000 Index FD 22,166 47,629 22,165 55,366
IShares TR Core MSCI EAF 9,096 8,900 9,096 9,557
Ishares Edge MSCI 12,849 13,662 - -
John Hancock Strategic Income Fund 53,585 52,617 52,944 50,440
JP Morgan Strategic Income Fund 32,839 32,653 32,596 32,750
JP Morgan Diversified 19,670 22,299 19,670 22,464
Loomis Sayles SR Float 31,938 30,172 30,199 29,836
Loomis Sayles Investment Grade Bond Fd 57,241 55,536 57,241 52,975
Lord Abbett Short Duration Income Fund 62,505 58,300 60,289 55,395
PIMCO In¢come Fund CL 12 20,178 19,943 - .
PIMCO Total Return Income Fund 76,825 15,277 77,007 71,080
SPDR S&P 500 EFT Trust ' 32,398 78,962 32,398 78,384

TOTAL $ 637,053 $ 738,896 $ 576,371 § 683,737

Investment advisory fees totaled $6,901 and $6,354 for August 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

See independent accountant's review report,
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LEARNING COMMUNITY, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
AUGUST 31,2019 AND 2018

NOTE 5 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Organization's investments are reported at fair value in the accompanying statements of
financial position. .
Fair Value Measurements Using:

Quoted Prices
In Active Markets
For Identical Assets

Fair Value (Level I}
August 31,2019

Investments (Note 4) $ 738,856 $ 738,896
August 31, 2018

Investments (Note 4) $ 683,737 $ 683,737

Generally accepted accounting principles provides a framework for measuring fair value. The
framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used
to measure fair value. Fair values for Level I are determined by reference to unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets. The Organization uses appropriate valuation
techniques based on the available inputs to measure the fair value of investments. When
available, the Organization measures fair vatue using Level I inputs because they generally
provide the most reliable evidence of fair value. No Level 2 or Level 3 inputs were available to
the Organization.

Level | Fair Value Measurements
The fair value of shares of registered investment companies is based on quoted net asset values of
the shares held by the Organization at year end. :

NOTE 6 - NET ASSETS

The Organization's Finance Committee and Board has decided that they will not designate any
portion of the net assets without doner restriction for fiscal years 2019 and 2018.

See independent accountant's review report.
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LEARNING COMMUNITY, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
AUGUST 31,2019 AND 2018

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt consists of the following:
August 31,
2019 2018
$22,124 note payable to Eversource Energy in monthly
installments of $503, non-interest bearing, maturing May
2021, Secured by equipment. $ 10,559 $ 16,593
Principal is scheduled to be repaid as follows:
Year Ending
August 31,
2020 $ 6,034
2021 4,525
2022 -
2023 -
2024 -
Thereafter -
$ 10,559
NOTE 8 - LEASED FACILITIES

The Organization conducts its operations from shared facilities that are rented. The annual rent is
determined as a percentage of the total operating expenses of the shared facility used by the
Organization. The Organization's share is 35.04% and the monthly rent payments were
determined to be $6,480.46 per month for the year. The prior lease expired on August 31,2014
and was renewed for an additional five-year term untif August 31, 2019, The organization is in
the process of renegotiating terms with the Town of Westport. In addition, the Town of Westport
(Lessor) may reacquire the use of the premises if it deems the additional space is required for the
use of its public school system. This will require that the lessee be given no less than twenty-four
month's notice of the Town's intentions. Rent expense for the years ended August 31, 2019 and
2018 amounted to $75,307 and $77,141 respectively.

See independent accountant's review report.
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LEARNING COMMUNITY, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
AUGUST 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT PLAN

Effective March 2600, the Organization adopted a defined contribution retirement plan, which
covers substantially all salaried employees, The Organization's contributions to the plan are at the
discretion of the Board of Directors. Employees may make contributions to the plan subject to
the limitations regulating deductions for federal income tax purposes.

The Organization's contribution for the years ended August 31, 2019 and 2018 totaled $23,876
and $20,958, respectively.

NOTE 10 - FUNDRAISING ACTIVITIES

Total fundraising costs were $41,500 and $35,470 for the years ended August 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

NOTE I1 - CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains its cash accounts in commercial banks. The balances are insured by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation for up to $250,000 per bank. As of August 31, 2019
and 2018, the Organization's balances exceeded this limit by $429,025 and $316,281,
respectively.

NOTE 12 - LIQUIDITY

The organization has $675,611 of financial assets available within one year of the statement of
financial position date to meet cash needs for general expenditure. Financial assets comprise of
cash, cash equivalents and accounts receivable.

See independent accountant's review report,
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LEARNING COMMUNITY, INC.
SCHEDULE I - DETAILS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2019

Program General and
Services Fundraising  Administrative Total

Wages - teachers $ 654,140 $ - $ - $ 654,140
Wages - administrative . 10,000 140,826 150,826
Rent 75,307 - - 75,307
Payroll taxes 58,995 770 10,844 70,609
Employee benefits 48,805 728 9,762 59,295
Staff bonuses 46,733 - 3,518 50,251
Depreciation 35,028 - - 35,028
Fundraising events - 30,002 - 30,002
Wages - summer 26,660 - - 26,660
Pension 23,876 - - 23,876
Office supplies and expense 21,660 - - 21,660
All school expense 21,285 - - 21,285
Classroom expenses 19,197 - - 19,197
Insurance 15,830 - 1,377 17,207
Building cleaning 16,740 - - 16,740
Educational Consuitant 16,361 - - 16,361
Music/drama expense 11,865 - - 11,865
Staff development 6,953 - - 6,953
Coach John 6,850 - - 6,850
Contracted labor 6,127 - - 6,127
Activity Costs 5,551 - - 5,551
Professional fees - - 5,200 5,200
Repairs and maintenance 4,005 - - 4,005
Miscelianeous 4,327 - - 4,327
Equipment rental 3,491 - - 3,491
Telephone 3,272 - - 3,272
Licensing costs 1,873 - - 1,873
Summer expenses 1,868 - - 1,868
Art program expense 1,344 - - 1,344
Postage 1,111 - - 1,111
Nurse 1,050 - - 1,050
Dues and subscriptions 490 - - 490
Director's expense 441 - - 441
Advertising 252 - - 252
Website maintenance 225 - - 225

$ 1,141,712 $ 41500 3 171,527 $ 1.354.739

See independent accountant's review report.
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LEARNING COMMUNITY, INC.

SCHEDULE II - DETAILS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Wages - teachers
Wages - administrative
Rent

Payroll taxes
Employee benefits
Staft bonuses
Depreciation
Fundraising events

Office supplies and expense

Wages - summer
Pension

Classroom expenses
All school expense
Insurance

Building cleaning
Music/drama expense
Repairs and maintenance
Contracted labor
Coach John
Miscellaneous
Professional fees
Activity Costs
Equipment rental

Staff development
Telephone

Licensing costs

Nurse

Art program expense
Postage

Summer expenses
Equipment maintenance
Advertising

Directors Expense
Dues and subscriptions
Website maintenance

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,2018

Program General and

Services Fundraising ~ Administrative Total
$ 622,537 $ - $ - $ 622,537
- 10,000 136,687 146,687
77,141 - - 77,141
56,000 770 10,525 67,295
46,663 692 9,006 56,361
42,746 - 3,217 45,963
31399 - - 31,399
- 24,008 - 24,008
23,233 - - 23,233
22,734 - - 22,734
20,958 - - 20,958
18,353 - - 18,353
17,246 - - 17,246
14,251 - 1,239 15,490
15,345 - . 15,345
12,005 - . 12,005
9,216 - - 9,216
5,627 - - 5,627
5,490 - - 5,490
5,258 - - 5,258
- - 5,200 5,200
4,557 - - 4,557
3,912 - - 3,912
2,861 - - 2,861
2,810 - - 2,810
1,616 - - 1,616
1,575 - - 1,575
1,222 - - 1,222
1,008 - - 1,008
848 - - 848
322 - - 822
698 - - 698
377 - - 377
375 - - 375
225 - - 225
$ 1,069,108 $ 35470 % 165,874 $ 1,270,452

See independent accountant's review report.
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Stephen W, Studer »
Richard J, Buturla
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Rolan Jonl Young
Ira W, Bloom
Jonathan D. Berchem o
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Etleen Lavigne Flug
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75 Broad Street
Milford, CT 06460

T: 203.
F: 203,

783,1200
878.2235

1221 Post Road East

Sulte 301
Westport, CT 06380
T: 203,227.9545
Fi 203.226.1641
PLEASE REPLY TO
WESTPORT OFFICE
January 29, 2020
Board of Finance
Town of Westport
Town Hall
110 Myrtle Avenue
Westport, CT 06880

Re: Town Attorney Budget
Dear Board Members:

As aresult of numerous unanticipated matters and ongoing
affordable housing matters, I am seeking additional funds for the contract
services line of the Town Atforney Budget.

By way of background, this budget line was approved at $510,000.
Through five months, we have expended $289,726.68, of which $138,000
was spent on four affordable housing-related matters alone. Other matters
before the Freedom of Information Commission and the Public Utility
Regulatory Authority have taken considerable time. In addition, we have
our typical assortment of administrative appeals, tax appeals, and
miscellancous litigation that occurs during most years.

Allowing for a possible transfer of $30,000 from the Negotiation
Services line of the Town Attorney budget, we are requesting an.
additional $170,000 for the balance of the 2019-2020 fiscal year,

This is my twenty-thitd year as Town Attorney. In approximately
six of those years, I have similarly sought additional funds from the Board
of Finance and RTM. During the remainder of these years, | have worked
cowmpletely within this budget or returned funds to the Town. The
contract service line in the budget encompasses litigation, administrative
hearings, and other types of ongoing extended projects. It is an estimate
only but based on extensive past practice. This fiscal year has clearly been
the heaviest docket of cases and expenditure of time in my experience as
Town Attorney. Most of the above matters will extend well beyond June
30, 2020, Approved for submission

To Board of Finance (/? /f/l@

//W% }

&s8’'S. Marpe
v i?/sqelectman

{01332765.DOCX Ver. 1}




Board of Finance
January 29, 2020
Page 2 of 2

Your favorable action on this request would be appreciated.

Sincerely,

Q,uxfg/

Ira W. Bloom
IWB.yc

{01332765.00CK Ver, 1}
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